
1 | P a g e  
 

 
 
 
 

Monday, August 21, 2023, 1:00 p.m. – 3:00 p.m.   
Council Member Meeting 

Butte County Employment & Social Services 
Zoom Link:https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82375064053?pwd=eGNEVTQybVNGUy9tSm9JYXNWaWQvZz09 

Join by Phone: +1 669 444 9171 
Zoom Meeting ID: 823 7506 4053 Passcode: 716243 

CoC Coordinator: Erin Murray 
Recording: Lisa Angle 

 
AGENDA 

 
1)  Convene Meeting and Establish Quorum 

A) Virtual Meeting Format.  Recording Meeting. 
 

A. Snyder 

2)  Approval of Minutes - ACTION 
A) CoC Council Meeting July 17, 2023 
B) CoC Special Meeting July 31, 2023 

 

A. Snyder 

3)  Emergency Solutions Grant: Balance of State - ACTION W. Lo 
 

4)  Community Partner Spotlight - INFORMATION 
Oroville Rescue Mission 
Presenting: Annie Terry 
 

A. Terry 

5)  Chico Pallet Shelter Update - INFORMATION 
 

A. Abney-Bass 

6)  CoC Program Grant - INFORMATION 
 

E. Murray 

7)  Lead Agency, Collaborative Applicant, Administrative Entity Updates – INFORMATION 
 

B.H. Butterfield 

8)  Committee Reports – INFORMATION 
 

All 

9)  Coalition and Jurisdiction Reports/Updates – INFORMATION 
 

All 

10)  Announcements 
 

All 

COC COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
Amber Abney-Bass Ed Mayer Jennifer Macarthy Sarah Frohock 
Anastacia Snyder Emily Pereira Marie Demers Steve Culleton 
Ann Winters Ian Clement Marin Hambley Tami Ritter 
Brad Brunner Josh Jamison Meagan Meloy Tracy Johnstone 
Briana Harvey-Butterfield Keesha Hills   

Butte Countywide Homeless Continuum of Care  
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82375064053?pwd=eGNEVTQybVNGUy9tSm9JYXNWaWQvZz09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82375064053?pwd=eGNEVTQybVNGUy9tSm9JYXNWaWQvZz09


2 | P a g e  
 

11)  Upcoming Meetings – Tuesday, September 5, 2023: Special Meeting. Monday, September 
18, 2023: Council Member Meeting 
Butte County Department of Employment & Social Services to host Virtual Meeting 
 

 

12)  ADJOURN  
 

 



 

 

  
 
 
Continuum of Care Meeting 
Virtual Meeting 
August 21, 2023 1:00 p.m. – 3:00 p.m. 
 

 
CoC Agenda Item #2: 
 
Approval of Minutes: 
 

A) July 17, 2023 CoC Council Meeting 
B) July 31, 2023 CoC Special Meeting 

Butte Countywide Homeless Continuum of Care 
 



Butte Countywide Homeless Continuum of Care Council  
Meeting Minutes 
July 17, 2023 
Butte County Employment and Social Services 
P a g e  | 1 
 

Butte County Continuum of Care 
        Councilmember Minutes 

Monday - July 17, 2023 
1:00 PM to 3:00 PM 

Zoom Meeting Hosted by: Butte County Employment & Social Services 
 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: OTHER ATTENDEES CONT: 
Ann Winters, Catalyst Amie Decker, Nation's First 
Anastacia Snyder, Catalyst Melissa Jamison, United Way of Nor Cal 
Keesha Hills, OSCIA Nikki Balboa, VA 
Briana Harvey-Butterfield, DESS H&H Leslie Johnson, CHAT 
Ed Mayer, HACB Bob Irvine, New Beginnings Housing Foundation 
Tami Ritter, BC Board of Supervisors Debbie Villasenor, Housing Consultant 
Emily Pereira, Youth for Change Conner Wenzel, Stonewall Alliance 
Ian Clement, Hope Cooperative Shelly Miller, First 5 Butte 
Jennifer Macarthy, City of Chico Rayna Bryson, DESS 
Marie Demers, City of Chico Angie Little, HACB 
Tracy Johnstone, City of Oroville Mary Neuman, Passages 
Josh Jamison, Oroville Hope Center Garrett Wong, California Health and Wellness 
 Tara Sullivan-Hames, Butte/Glenn 211 
COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT: Annie Terry, ORM 
Sarah Frohock, BCDBH Charles Withuhn, North State Shelter Team 
Brad Brunner, Caminar   Taylor Storey, TNHA 
Marin Hambley, Stonewall Josh Jamison, Oroville Hope Center 
Amber Abney-Bass, Jesus Center Codie McCormack, Caminar 
Steve Culleton, Town of Paradise Carnella Marks, Restoring Our Community 
Meagan Meloy, BCOE Sherry Morgado, Housing Tools 
 Kaitlyn Sherrill, DESS H&H 
OTHER ATTENDEES: Yesenia Gallegos, CHAT 
Kevin Thompson, OSCIA Caitlin Davis-Rivers, CHAT 
Mary Jo Alonzo, City of Chico Samantha Raschka, Ampla Health 
Tracey Gilliham, Butte/Glenn 211 Jay Coughlin, DESS H&H 
Susan Rolls, Chico State Eduardo Abarca, Ampla MMU 
Nicole Drummond, CHAT Troy McClanahan, DESS H&H 
Tim Hawkins, CAA Ann Winters, Catalyst 
Wendy Lo, DESS H&H Shelby Boston, DESS 
Matt McCoy, VSO Hilary Crosby, Safe Space 
Shelly Storkan, DBH Pahua Thao, DESS H&H 
Monica Soderstrom, Public Health Liliana Sapien, CA Human Development 



Butte Countywide Homeless Continuum of Care Council  
Meeting Minutes 
July 17, 2023 
Butte County Employment and Social Services 
P a g e  | 2 
 

 
CoC Coordinator: Erin Murray, DESS H&H Recording: Lisa Angle, DESS H&H 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS 

 
1. CONVENE MEETING AND ESTABLISH QUORUM 

 
The meeting was called to order by Anastacia Snyder, Chairperson at 1:02pm.  Roll call of the council members 
conducted by Ed Mayer, First Chair and a quorum was established. This meeting is being facilitated by Ed Mayer, 
First Chair and the meeting is being recorded. 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – ACTION 
 
 A motion was made to approve the following minutes as presented. 
 

a. June 12, 2023  – CoC Council Meeting Minutes   
 

Motion:   Jennifer McCarthy 
Second:   Tracy Johnstone 
Opposed: None opposed 
Abstain:   Briana Harvey-Butterfield 

 
3. COMMUNITY PARTNER SPOTLIGHT - INFORMATION 

Presenting:  Liliana Sapien California Human Development 
 
Liliana Sapien provided an overview of the California Human Development, a private non-profit serving Northern 
California.  The California Human Development implements the National Farm Workers Jobs Program, job 
search and training services for farm workers and dependents.  There are requirements to be eligible for this 
program and a phone screening can be completed to determine eligibility.  The program provides assistance for 
short term vocational training such as truck driving, welding and medical assistant. The program provides limited 
support services, including a one-time rental assistance, one-time utility assistance and transportation assistance as 
needed. 
 
Liliana Sapien further stated the California Human Development receives various grants throughout the fiscal 
year.  The USDA Relief Grant is currently being implemented and is a one-time $600 payment to eligible farm 
workers. There have been grants received for temporary employment programs, as well as funds to provide 
temporary employment for victims of the Camp Fire. CARES funding provided rental assistance for 3 months for 
eligible families. California Human Development Flyer and link will be sent out by Erin Murray to everyone. 
 
 
 

Carolina Cruz, Catalyst Sherrise Allen, BC Admin 
Rebecca Samaha, Anthem Dee Price, DESS H&H 
Jolene Hausman, BC Child Abuse Prevention Council Stefen Spirk, CAA 
Nancy Jorth, YFC Elisa Rawlinson, DESS H&H 
Bow Rice, BCDBH  
Jesica Giannola, CHAT  



Butte Countywide Homeless Continuum of Care Council  
Meeting Minutes 
July 17, 2023 
Butte County Employment and Social Services 
P a g e  | 3 
 

The California Human Development Chico office provides services to all of Butte, Tehama and Glenn Counties.  
There is a mobile unit that travels to Yreka and rural areas to provide services. 
 

4. HOUSING AND HOMELESSNESS INCENTIVE PROGRAM (HHIP) UPDATE - INFORMATION 
 
Rebecca Samaha, Anthem provided Housing and Home Incentive Program Overview: 
 

• HHIP is a 2 year voluntary incentive program for Dept of Health Care Services for Medi-Cal Managed 
Care Plans to earn funds by developing partnerships and addressing homelessness. 

• Anthem and California Health and Wellness have been working with CoC on HHIP over 18 months.  The 
CoC helped support the Medi-Cal Managed Care Plans with reporting and the Managed Care Plans have 
made initial investments. 

• Anthem Blue Cross and California Health and Wellness worked with the CoC to host listening sessions 
with the community to identify potential gaps and needs. 

• CoC signed a letter of support for the Managed Care Plans investment plan and submitted to the State in 
September in 2022.  The area of focus for the investment plan where:  Increased Street Outreach Services 
for $300,000, Flexible Financial Assistance for Housing Lease Up for $400,000 and Enhanced Housing 
Navigation/Services in Shelter for $500,000 which all aligned with the HHIP metrics. 

• CoC Review and Ranking Committee supported the RFP process and reviewed applications and made 
recommendations to the Managed Care Plans. 

• Managed Care Plans committed to investments into the CoC infrastructure. 
 
Garret Wong, California Health and Wellness continued on with overview of the HHIP funded partnerships and 
next steps: 
 

• HHIP funded partnerships with:  Department of Employment and Social Services, Chico Housing Action 
Team, Community Action Agency, Help Central Inc., Home + Heart, Jesus Center, Oroville Rescue 
Mission, Oroville Southside Community Improvement Association Inc., Safe Space Winter Shelter and 
True North Housing Alliance. 

• HHIP Investments in CoC Activities: 
o HHIP investments to Butte County for the following: 

 PIT Count Incentives and other PIT Count costs 
 Staffing costs for Coordinated Entry and Homeless Management Information System 

(HMIS) costs. 
 HMIS license fees for Managed Care Plan staff 

• Investment to support CoC Racial Equity trainings and facilitator. 
• HHIP last reporting period ends 10/31/23 with final report due to the state in December. 
• Anthem and California Health and Wellness are exiting Butte County on 12/31/23 and Partnership Health 

Plan entering as the new Medi-Cal Managed Care Plan. 
 

5. COC HUD GRANT REPORT OUT – INFORMATION 
 
Erin Murray, CoC Coordinator reminded everyone that at the all member CoC meeting in May the new policy for 
CoC Program Grant Report Outs was adopted and today is the first annual report out.   



Butte Countywide Homeless Continuum of Care Council  
Meeting Minutes 
July 17, 2023 
Butte County Employment and Social Services 
P a g e  | 4 
 

 
Erin Murray, CoC Coordinator reviewed the annual report out for Butte County DESS Coordinated Entry System 
(CES) as of June 30, 2023: 

• Coordinated Entry for dates of service 1/1/23 - 12/31/23 
• Amount Awarded:  $36,241.00 Amount expended: $18,212.00 
• Project Goals:  To support Coordinated Entry enrollment costs 
• Progress made toward project goals:   

o 291 CE enrollments completed by Help Central this calendar year 
• Grant to be fully expended by end of calendar year 

 
Erin Murray, CoC Coordinator reviewed the annual report out for Butte County DESS Homeless Management 
Information System (HMIS) as of June 30, 2023: 

• Homeless Management Information System for dates of service 1/1/23 - 12/31/23 
• Amount Awarded: $144,080.00 Amount expended:  $32,705.00 
• Challenges: Significant operational costs 
• Project Goals:  To support HMIS administration and program costs 
• Progress made toward project goals: 

o 18 agencies  
o Over 100 programs 

• Grant to be fully expended by end of calendar year 
 
Erin Murray, CoC Coordinator reviewed the annual report out for Butte County DESS Planning Grant as of June 
30, 2023: 

• Planning Grant for dates of service 1/1/23-12/31/23 
• Amount awarded:  $22,248.00 Amount expended:  $9,118.00 
• Challenges:  High level administrative activities 
• Project Goals: To support CoC grant activities 
• Progress made toward project goals: 

o Funds used to support contract with Housing Tools for 2023 Point in Time report 
o 2023 CoC Program Grant Process 

• Grant to be fully expended by end of calendar year 
 
Codie McCormack, Caminar reviewed the annual report out for Avenida Apartments - Supportive Housing 
Project: 

• Avenida Apartments for dates of service 10/1/22-9/30/23 
• Amount awarded $87,981.00 Amount expended $65,985.75 
• Challenges:  Maintaining tenants in the only 2 bedroom unit due to 2 individuals who don't know each 

other to live in the same unit without conflict. 
• Project Goals: Provide housing to a minimum of 14 consumers per year and maintain length of stay of a 

minimum of 2 years. 
• Progress made toward project goals: 

o Housed 17 individuals at the end of FY 2022/2023 Q4 



Butte Countywide Homeless Continuum of Care Council  
Meeting Minutes 
July 17, 2023 
Butte County Employment and Social Services 
P a g e  | 5 
 

o Average length of stay at the end of FY 2022/2023 Q2 was 4.65 years.  The Q3 report has not 
been finalized by the county as of this report. 

• Positive outcomes: 
o Have a stable tenant population 
o Full occupancy 
o Many tenants participated in Vocational Training Programs.  Some tenants participated in Jobs 

Plus Program and placed in community employment. 
• Additional needs to expand or continue funding: 

o Remodel the only 2 bedroom unit into 2 studio apartments. 
 
Codie McCormack, Caminar reviewed the annual report out for Base Camp Village - Supportive Housing Project: 

• Base Camp Village for dates of service 10/1/22-9/30/23 
• Amount awarded:  $86,718.00 Amount expended: $86,718.00 
• Challenges: Flooring installed during construction coming up and needs to be replaced. Flooring replaced 

in the manager's office and five units. 
• Project Goals:  Provide housing to 12 consumers per year and maintain average length of stay of 

minimum of 2 years. 
• Progress made toward project goals: 

o End of Q4 housed 14 individuals 
o End of Q3 goal was met for 2 year average length of stay 
o 2 year average stay in 3rd year of operation 

• Positive outcomes: 
o Achieved goal of average length of stay of 2 years 
o Achieved goal of serving at least 12 individuals at the end of 3rd year of operation 
o Tenants participating in Vocational Training Programs 
o Tenants participating in Jobs Plus Programs and placed into community employment 

• Additional needs to expand or continue funding: 
o Replace flooring in community room, meeting room and 7 units 
o Renovation of landscaping at Base Camp Village to control abundant weed growth and property 

accessibility for tenants and staff 
 

Carolina Cruz, Catalyst reviewed the annual report out for Cottages TH/RRH: 
• Cottages for dates of service 10/1/22-9/30/23 
• Amount awarded:  $110,843.00 Amount expended:  $56,293.91 
• Challenges:  HUD FMR versus Butte County Payment Standards and project start date delayed 3 month 

from original start date 
• Project Goals: Provide advocacy for the Cottage Program households, increase capacity of rapid 

rehousing by 3 households and hire 1 FTE Housing Coordinator 
 
• Progress made toward project goals: 

o Hired FTE Housing Coordinator 
o Increased capacity for RRH by 5 households 
o Providing consistent advocacy to Cottage Program Households 



Butte Countywide Homeless Continuum of Care Council  
Meeting Minutes 
July 17, 2023 
Butte County Employment and Social Services 
P a g e  | 6 
 

• Positive outcomes: 
o 8 households in stable housing with TH/RRH and leveraging other funds 
o Increase Cottage participant engagement 
o Updates to documents 

 
Carolina Cruz, Catalyst reviewed the annual report out for Rapid Re-Housing: 

• Rapid Re-Housing dates of service 7/1/22-6/30/23 
• Amount awarded $95,765.00 Amount expended by 6/30/23 $95,765.00 
• Challenges:  Staff turnover and new hire training, emergency housing vouchers impacts on RRH dollars 

spent and HUD FMR versus Butte County Payment Standards 
• Project Goals:  Provide deposits, rental assistance and supportive services for 5 households for 24 months 

who are survivors of intimate partner violence. 
• Progress made toward project goals: 

o As of 6/2/23 assisted 15 households with supportive services, security deposit and/or ongoing 
rental assistance 

o 3 households currently searching for housing 
• Positive outcomes: 

o No participant evicted 
o Housing Habitability Standards inspections done by Housing Coordinator expedites housing 

timeline 
o HHAP3 funds added a Housing Navigator with access to RRH dollars to support survivors of 

domestic violence staying in order emergency shelters 
 
Erin Murray, CoC Coordinator reviewed the annual report out for James Place - Permanent Supportive Housing 
Program on behalf of True North: 

• James Place dates of service 9/1/22 - 8/31/23 
• Amount awarded $48,983.00 Amount expended $31,275.64 
• Challenges:  Difficult to secure tenants due to criteria requirement and will continue to refine recruitment 

efforts and use CES 
• Project Goals: Help tenants obtain and remain in permanent housing, help participants increase skills and 

income and help tenants increase self-sufficiency. 
• Progress made toward project goals: 

o 3 individuals remained successfully housed and continue to work with case managers to maintain 
housing and practice skills essential to maintaining housing. 

• Positive outcomes: 
o Housed 17 individuals 
o Increased skills development, practice and access to social service programs. 
o Program reduces homelessness in Butte County 

 
 
 
 
 



Butte Countywide Homeless Continuum of Care Council  
Meeting Minutes 
July 17, 2023 
Butte County Employment and Social Services 
P a g e  | 7 
 

6. COMMUNITY SUCCESSES - DISCUSSION: 
 
Erin Murray, CoC Coordinator stated this item was added as an agenda item for any agencies who would like to 
share any community success stories within their agency or within the population the agency serves. All names 
and identifying information will need to be excluded when sharing the success story with the CoC. 
 
Annie Terry, ORM shared a new program opened up called Permanent Supportive Housing (Round About 
Housing) and along with HHIP funds was able to place 8 people into housing and the goal is to house 12 people 
by the end of the October 2023. 
 
Ed Mayer, HACB shared the Prospect View Apartments are under construction and will be available to house 25 
individuals experiencing homelessness. 
 
Debbie Villasenor, Housing Consultant shared DESS was successful in applying for and being awarded 
Encampment Funds.  The Encampment Funds along with Prospect View will be a resource for permanent housing 
for the homeless population. The Coordinated Entry system will be utilized to refer individuals to access 
permanent housing from 2 encampments located in Oroville and Gridley. Encampment Funds will be used to 
enhance some supportive services for some agencies.  
 
Brief discussion on the direct referrals for occupancy into permanent housing and the process of referrals in 
Coordinated Entry. 
 
Ed Mayer, HACB shared there are several new housing opportunities coming on line in Chico, Oroville, Gridley 
and Orland. Sunrise Village Apartments in Gridley is a 37 senior unit and are now actively leasing.  Sunrise 
Village Apartments is a section 8 voucher program and there is currently a waiting list.  Riverbend Apartments in 
Oroville is a 72 family unit and are currently leasing.  Mitchell Avenue Apartments is a senior property in phase 2 
for 35 units in Oroville.  North Creek Crossing Apartments in phase 1 in Chico and is virtually leased.  Tonea 
Way is a 104 unit senior project in north Chico and is leasing for Phase 1. 
 
Elisa Rawlinson, DESS shared a client who was sleeping in the park recently connected with her. This client 
started with the HDAP program in 2018 and throughout that process the client worked with 8 different CoC 
agencies. As a result this client has went from sleeping in the park to obtaining a loan to purchase a home and to 
have it built.   
 
Nicole Drummond, CHAT announced finishing the 3rd purchase of a condo that families will be moving into 
which were able to be secured by the deposits from the CoC and the 20th cabin has been delivered to Everhart 
Village. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Butte Countywide Homeless Continuum of Care Council  
Meeting Minutes 
July 17, 2023 
Butte County Employment and Social Services 
P a g e  | 8 
 

7. LEAD AGENCY, COLLABORATIVE APPLICANT, ADMINISTRATIVE ENTITY UPDATES - 
INFORMATION: 
 
Briana Harvey-Butterfield, DESS stated in August the PIT Longitunal Report for years 2009 through 2023 will be 
available soon. 
 
Briana Harvey-Butterfield, DESS announced the NOFO for 2023 CoC competition has been released.  A few 
meetings will be set up for the NOFO: 

• July 31, 2023 Review of NOFO, review/ranking procedures and reallocation process 
• September 5, 2023 special meeting scheduled for CoC approval of project ranking. 

 
Briana Harvey-Butterfield will continue to monitor the HCD website for the ESG Balance of State to be released. 
 
Briana Harvey-Butterfield, DESS shared the team has been successful in securing some Encampment Resolution 
funding which totals a little over $1 million and the intent is to serve 34 households at 2 identified encampments 
within the County jurisdiction.  Briana further stated will be partnering with Pacific West Communities and North 
Valley Catholic Social Services to provide ongoing case management. 
 
Erin Murray, CoC Coordinator stated HHAP Round 4 request for proposals is on schedule to be released in the 
fall 2023. HHAP Round 5 application will be available by the end of September 2023. 

 
8. COMMITTEE REPORTS - INFORMATION 

 
Chronic Homelessness - Shelly Storkan announced Caitlin Patterson, CHAT attended the meeting on June 21, 
2023 and gave a presentation on Everhart Village.  Next meeting is August 16, 2023 at 1:30pm. 
 
HMIS/CES - Elisa Rawlinson announced the HMIS/CES software system has been opened up to share more 
information with other agencies. The responsibilities for the HMIS Lead and the HMIS Lead Agency were 
reviewed.  A list of goals was created to be completed by the committed in the next 6 months which includes 
updating HMIS/CES policies and procedures, updating data quality plan and security plan. 
 
Equity - Erin Murray announced Jessica Gianola was nominated as Chairperson and Jolene Hausman as Vice-
Chairman.  The first session of the Diversity, Inclusion and Equity training will be July 27, 2023. 
 
Youth Homelessness -  Next meeting is August 9, 2023 at 12:30pm. Planning for Homeless Youth Awareness 
Month in November and Youth Advisory Council. 
 
Governance - Erin Murray announced the last scheduled meeting was cancelled and next meeting is August 9, 
2023 at 10am.  If interested connect with Erin. 
 
Households with Children - No one available to update. 
 



Butte Countywide Homeless Continuum of Care Council  
Meeting Minutes 
July 17, 2023 
Butte County Employment and Social Services 
P a g e  | 9 
 

Veteran's - Matt McCoy announced last meeting was July 7, 2023 and had a stand down update from Dr. 
LaRiviere along with the results of the Spaghetti feed fundraiser.  Information regarding Veteran's Justice 
Outreach was provided another presentation will occur on August 16, 2023. 
 
Household Items - Jay Coughlin met 7/17/23 with the North Valley Community Foundation for working on the 
fundraiser flyer.  The flyer will be given to their graphics team to put something together for distribution.  Next 
meeting July 20, 2023 from 3 to 4 if interested send Jay an email. 

 
9.  COALITION AND JURISDICTION REPORTS/UPDATES - INFORMATION 

 
Greater Chico Area Homeless Task Force - Some Exec team members met to discuss how to encourage and get 
engagement from community members. 
 
Greater Oroville Homeless Coalition - Josh Jamison announced 2 staff members of the Hope Center who have 
been unhoused for a while have obtained permanent housing.  Working on getting more City government 
involved in the coalition.  Grateful for the collaboration of all agencies to meet the needs of our community. 
 
Tami Ritter, BOS - Library funding has been secured for one more year and if there are organizations who are 
dependent on the library being kept opened then it is time for the CoC or member organizations to become 
involved in this discussion. 
 
City of Chico - Jennifer Macarthy announced the City of Chico is working on an application with co-applicant the 
Jesus Center through the Home Key Program to provide permanent supportive housing units in Chico.   
 
City of Oroville - Amy Bergstrand announced contract for Oroville Pallet Project and an update will be taken to 
the City Council meeting on 7/18/23.  If anyone is interested the meeting starts at 4pm.   
 
Butte County Department of Employment & Social Services to host Virtual Meeting 

 
10. ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

 
No Announcements. 
 

11. NEXT REGULAR MEETING - Monday August 21, 2023:  SPECIAL MEETING - CoC Program Grant Funds to 
be Announced 
Butte County Department of Employment & Social Services to host Virtual Meeting 
 

12. ADJOURN: 
 
Ed Mayer, Vice Chairperson adjourned the meeting at 2:23pm 
 



Butte Countywide Homeless Continuum of Care Council  
Special Meeting Minutes 
July 31, 2023 
Butte County Employment and Social Services 
P a g e  | 1 
 

Butte County Continuum of Care 
        Councilmember Minutes 

Monday - July 31, 2023  
1:00 PM to 3:00 PM 

Zoom Meeting Hosted by: Butte County Employment & Social Services 
 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: OTHER ATTENDEES CONT: 
Sarah Frohock, BCDBH Isabel Alaniz-Alvarado, DESS H&H 
Brad Brunner, Caminar Melissa Jamison, United Way of Nor Cal 
Jennifer Macarthy, City of Chico Nikki Balboa, VA 
Briana Harvey-Butterfield, DESS H&H Scott Kennelly, BDCBH 
Ed Mayer, HACB Nicole Drummond, CHAT 
Tami Ritter, BC Board of Supervisors Debbie Villasenor, Housing Consultant 
Emily Pereira, Youth for Change Conner Wenzel, Stonewall Alliance 
Josh Jamison, Oroville Hope Center Shelly Miller, First 5 Butte 
Ann Winters, Catalyst Rayna Bryson, DESS 
Ian Clement, Hope Cooperative Sherry Morgado, Housing Tools 
 Dee Price, DESS H&H 
COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT: Jolene Hausman, BC Child Abuse Prevention Council 
Tracy Johnstone, City of Oroville Elisa Rawlinson, DESS H&H 
Marie Demers, City of Chico Wendy Longwell, Disability Action Center 
Anastacia Snyder, Catalyst Troy McClanahan, DESS H&H 
Keesha Hills, OSCIA Taylor Storey, TNHA 
Marin Hambley, Stonewall Kaitlyn Sherrill, DESS H&H 
Amber Abney-Bass, Jesus Center Wendy Lo, DESS H&H 
Steve Culleton, Town of Paradise Carnella Marks, Restoring Our Community 
Meagan Meloy, BCOE Matt McCoy, DESS VSO 
  
OTHER ATTENDEES:  
Samantha Raschka, Ampla Health  
Cathryn Carkhuff, Home & Heart  
Tracey Gilliham, Butte/Glenn 211  
Mary Jo Alonzo, City of Chico  
Amy Bergstrand, City of Oroville  
Ann Winters, Catalyst  
Annie Terry, ORM  
Alise Pugh, DESS CSD  
Brianna Scott, Aegis Treatment Centers  
Monica Soderstrom, Public Health  



Butte Countywide Homeless Continuum of Care Council  
Special Meeting Minutes 
July 31, 2023 
Butte County Employment and Social Services 
P a g e  | 2 
 
CoC Coordinator: Erin Murray, DESS H&H Recording: Lisa Angle, DESS H&H 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS 

 
1. CONVENE MEETING AND ESTABLISH QUORUM 

 
The meeting was called to order by Ed Mayer, First Chair at 1:02pm.   Roll call of the council members conducted 
by Ed Mayer, First Chair and a quorum was established. This meeting is being facilitated by Ed Mayer, First Chair 
and the meeting is being recorded. 
 

2. APPROVE THE REVIEW AND RANKING PROCEDURE FOR 2023 CoC PROJECT APPLICATION – 
ACTION 
 
A) FY 2023 NOFO Memo - Sherry Morgado, Housing Tools stated the FY 2023 NOFO Memo is a summary 

which lays out what is going on with this year's competition in terms of HUD's requirements, the local time 
line, local processes and some supporting documentation which is included along with the memo.  Sherry 
Morgado reviewed the memo with the Council: 

• HUD released  the NOFO on July 5, 2023 with approximately $3.1 billion in 2023-2024 federal fiscal 
year for homeless assistance grants nationwide 

• Consolidated Applications for this funding opportunity are due no later than September 28, 2023 8pm 
EST or 5pm PST. 

• 2023 NOFO Priorities (same as 2022) 
• Notable Changes from the 2022 NOFO 
• Deadline September 28, 2023 
• Funding Levels 
• Eligible Project Application Types 

o Renewal Projects 
o New Projects 
o Expansion Projects 

• Eligible Project Components 
o Permanent Housing (Permanent Supportive Housing and Rapid Rehousing) 
o Transitional Housing 
o Supportive Services Only 
o HMIS 

• Bonuses - 2 potential bonuses available 
o DV Bonus 
o CoC Bonus 

• Ranking of Projects/Tier Funding Levels 
o Tier 1 
o Tier 2 
o CoC is mandated to maintain HMIS 

• Sherry Morgado reviewed and explained the FY 2023 CoC Estimated Annual Renewal Demand Report 
for CA-519 Chico, Paradise/Butte County CoC. 

• Project Application Process 
o All Applications - must attend a mandatory orientation on 8/10/23 from 1-3 via zoom 
o Renewal Project Applications and Renewal Projects with Expansion 
o New Project Applications 

• Reviewing and Ranking Process 
o As outlined in the Review and Ranking Procedure, the CoC utilizes Housing Tools as an 

independent third party. 



Butte Countywide Homeless Continuum of Care Council  
Special Meeting Minutes 
July 31, 2023 
Butte County Employment and Social Services 
P a g e  | 3 
 

o CoC consider recommendations and retains the right to change the ranking of proposals for 
submission to HUD through Priority Listing. 

• Schedule based on September 28, 2023 due date 
 

B) Review, Score and Ranking Procedures - Sherry Morgado stated HUD requires CoC to conduct a detailed 
and objective review, score and ranking process for project applications that prioritizes and funds projects that 
best align with HUD priorities and performance standards. Sherry Morgado reviewed the review, score and 
ranking procedures with the Council. 
 

• Step 1 - Approved Procedures and Documentation 
• Step 2 - Outreach to ensure all eligible agencies are aware of this funding opportunity. 
• Step 3 - Eligibility Threshold (HUD requirements) 
• Step 4 - Project Application Ranking with ranking exceptions for HMIS, DV Bonus and CoC Planning 

Projects 
• Step 5 - Council Approved 
• Step 6 - Notification to Applicants 

 
C) Process for Reallocation - Sherry Morgado stated this process has been the same since 2016 and has not 

changed.  This process will be used this year and no changes are being recommended. 
 

D) FY 2023 New Application - Sherry Morgado briefly reviewed the new application process along with the 
scoring/ranking criteria.  The new application will be reviewed in more detail in the mandatory orientation on 
8/10/23. Deadline for new applications is 8/21/23 at 5pm. 

 
E) FY 2023 Renewal Application - Sherry Morgado briefly reviewed the renewal application process along with 

the scoring/ranking criteria.  The renewal application will be reviewed in more detail in the mandatory 
orientation on 8/10/23. Deadline for renewal applications is 8/21/23 at 5pm. 

 
F) FY 2023 NOFO - Sherry Morgado stated the full NOFO is included in the agenda packet and it is encouraged 

for all applicants to review. 
 
For technical assistance in the application process email Sherry Morgado for any questions. 
 
*All applications/applicants must attend a mandatory orientation on 8/10/23 and the invite will be sent out to all 
membership by email after the meeting. 

 
• A motion was made to approve the following: 

 
a. FY 2023 NOFO Memo 
b. Review, Score and Ranking Procedures 
c. Process for Reallocation 
d. FY 2023 New Application 
e. FY 2023 Renewal Application 
f. FY 2023 NOFO 

 
Motion:  Tami Ritter 
Second:  Ann Winters  
Opposed: None  
Abstain:  None  

 



Butte Countywide Homeless Continuum of Care Council  
Special Meeting Minutes 
July 31, 2023 
Butte County Employment and Social Services 
P a g e  | 4 
 

3.  NEXT MEETING – Monday August 21, 2023 
 
Butte County Department of Employment & Social Services to host Virtual Meeting 
 

4. ADJOURNMENT:  
 

• A motion was made to adjourn the meeting at 2:02pm 
 

Motion:  Ann Winters 
Second:  Tami Ritter 
Opposed: None  
Abstain:  None  

 
Ed Mayer, Vice Chairperson adjourned the meeting at 2:02pm 



 

 

  
 
 
Continuum of Care Meeting 
Virtual Meeting 
August 21, 2023 1:00 p.m. – 3:00 p.m. 
 

 
CoC Agenda Item #3: 
 
2023 Emergency Solutions 
Grant: Balance of State 
 

A) 2023 CoC Memo 
B) Notice of Funding Availability 

Butte Countywide Homeless Continuum of Care 
 



 

 http://www.buttehomelesscoc.com 

  
 

  
 

DATE:    August 21, 2023 
 
MEMORANDUM FOR: CoC Council 
 
FROM:   Wendy Lo 

Health & Human Services Program Analyst III 
    Butte County Department of Employment and Social Services 
    Butte Homeless Countywide CoC Lead Agency 
 
SUBJECT:   2023 ESG BoS 
 
Background 
 
The Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) released the 2023 Emergency Solutions 
Grants Program Balance of State (BoS) Allocation Tuesday, August 15th.   
 
The BoS allocation is made available based on recommendations from the CoC in two ways: 
 

1) Through a Non-Competitive process for Rapid Re-Housing Activities, and 
2) Through Regional Competitions within geographic regions 

 
A total of $315,761 has been allocated for the Butte CoC. Of this amount, the CoC can elect to set aside 40% 
for the Non-Competitive portion, or 50%. CoC Council is being asked to vote on the Non-Competitive set-aside 
for Rapid Re-Housing. The funding breakout is noted below. 
 
40% Non-Competitive 
Rapid Rehousing 

60% Regional 
Competition 

 
OR 

50% Non-Competitive 
Rapid Rehousing 

50% Regional 
Competition 

$126,304 $189,457 $157,881 $157,881 
 
If the CoC elects to set aside 40% for Non-Competitive Rapid Re-Housing Activities, this would allow for more 
funding availability in the Regional Competition. The eligible use categories within the Regional Competition 
are more expansive and include emergency shelter, street outreach, homelessness prevention, HMIS, as well as 
rapid re-housing. However, the Regional Competition is highly competitive and there is no guarantee of being 
awarded. 
 
The County, as the Lead Agency, recommends electing 50% to Non-Competitive Rapid Re-Housing Activities. 
This will ensure the maximum amount of funding is made available to the CoC, should the applications 
submitted for the Regional Competition be unsuccessful. Due to the highly competitive nature of the Regional 
Competition, the CoC has been unsuccessful in securing funds in past years. 
  
Attachment 
 
2023 ESG BoS NOFA 
 

Butte Countywide Homeless Continuum of Care 
 



 

 http://www.buttehomelesscoc.com 

Action Requested 
 
To vote on the allowable ESG amount/percentage under the Non-Competitive Rapid-Rehousing set-aside. 
 
Follow-Up Meetings 
 
Monday, August 28th, 1 pm to 3 pm –Public Meeting to discuss NOFA and CoC process for selecting 
applicants. Mandatory for applicants. 
 
Monday, September 11th – ESG BoS Applications due to CoC. 
 
Thursday, September 14th - Review and Ranking Committee is tentatively scheduled to meet. 
 
Monday, September 18th - CoC vote on Committee Recommendation. 
 
ESG BoS Applications and all required documentation must be received by HCD no later than Monday, 
October 16th, 2023, 3 p.m.  



 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA - BUSINESS, CONSUMER SERVICES AND HOUSING AGENCY  GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor  
DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DIVISION OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
2020 W. El Camino Avenue, Suite 200 
Sacramento, CA 95833 
(916) 263-2771 / FAX (916) 263-2763  
www.hcd.ca.gov 

 
July 28, 2023 

 
MEMORANDUM FOR:  All Potential Applicants 
 
FROM:  Sasha Hauswald, Deputy Director  
  Division of Federal Financial Assistance 
 
SUBJECT: 2023 Emergency Solutions Grants Program  

Balance of State Allocation 
Notice of Funding Availability 
 

The California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD/Department) is 
pleased to announce the availability of approximately $5 million in new federal funds for the 
Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG) program. Funding for this NOFA is made available 
pursuant to Subtitle B of Title IV of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act. 
 
HCD will be accepting 2023 ESG applications through the eCivis Grants Management 
System portal beginning August 15, 2023. Applications and all required documentation 
must be received by HCD no later than Monday, October 16, 2023, 3:00 p.m. Pacific 
Daylight Time (PDT). Any application received after Monday, October 16, 2023, 
3:00 p.m. PDT will not be accepted. 
 
The application must include a completed authorizing resolution (AR) approved by the 
Applicant’s governing board and on the required HCD template. The AR designates a 
person (or persons) responsible for, and authorized to execute, all documents related to 
the application for ESG funds and submittal of funds requests.  
 
Please see the instructions for completing the AR template on the ESG website. Failure to 
use the AR form provided by HCD will result in automatic disqualification. If a governing 
body must prepare a separate resolution concurrently that conforms to its local standard, it 
may do so, so long as the AR form provided by HCD is completed in full. “In the event 
the applicant's AR is not submitted by the application due date, then the entire 
application will be deemed untimely and thus automatically rejected in its entirety.”  
 
Applicants are encouraged to set-up their profiles in the eCivis portal located at eCivis 
Grants Management System Portal as early as possible. Information about setting up a 
profile, submitting an application, and managing awards through the eCivis portal is 
available on HCD’s ESG website at “https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/active-
funding/esg.shtml” 
 
 
 
 
 

https://portal.ecivis.com/#/login
https://portal.ecivis.com/#/login
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/active-funding/esg.shtml
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/active-funding/esg.shtml


Emergency Solutions Grant BoS NOFA 
July 28, 2023  
Page 2 

Applicants are encouraged to begin the application process early to ensure successful 
submission before the application deadline. If you have any trouble logging into the portal,  
or have questions on how to complete the online application, please contact the ESG Staff 
at: ESGNOFA@hcd.ca.gov. 

To receive ESG NOFA FAQs, other program information, and updates, please subscribe 
to the Federal Programs listserv at https://www.hcd.ca.gov/contact-us/email-signup.  

For questions, or assistance, please email ESGNOFA@hcd.ca.gov. 

Attachment 

https://www.hcd.ca.gov/contact-us/email-signup
mailto:ESGNOFA@hcd.ca.gov
mailto:ESGNOFA@hcd.ca.gov


 

 
 

 

 
Emergency Solutions Grants Program 

 
Balance of State Allocation 

 
2023 Notice of Funding Availability 

 
 

 
 

 
Gavin Newsom, Governor 

State of California 
 

Lourdes M. Castro Ramírez, Secretary 
Business, Consumer Services and Housing Agency 

 
Gustavo Velasquez, Director 

California Department of Housing and Community Development 
 
 

Division of Federal Financial Assistance, Community Development Branch 
Emergency Solutions Grants Program 

2020 W. El Camino Avenue, Suite 200, Sacramento, CA 95833 
ESG Program Email: ESGNOFA@hcd.ca.gov 

 
July 28, 2023 

 

mailto:ESGNOFA@hcd.ca.gov


 

 
 

 

Table of Contents 
I. Overview ______________________________________________________________ 1 

A. Notice of Funding Availability ____________________________________________ 
B. Tentative program timeline ______________________________________________ 2 
C.    New requirements & Additions in the 2023 NOFA ____________________________ 2 

1 

D. Authorizing legislation _________________________________________________ 9 
E. Role of Continuum of Care in the BoS Allocation ____________________________ 10 

II. BoS Non-competitive Funding ____________________________________________ 11 
A. Overview __________________________________________________________ 11 
B. Annual Action Plan requirements ________________________________________ 11 
C. Amounts available for Administrative Activities ______________________________ 12 
D. Eligible Activities ____________________________________________________ 12 
E. Terms of Assistance __________________________________________________ 13 

III. BoS Regional Competitive Requirements ___________________________________ 15 
A.   Amounts available for Administrative Activities ______________________________ 15 
B. Eligible Activities ____________________________________________________ 15 
C. Terms of Assistance __________________________________________________ 18 
D. Eligible ESG Activities under the regional competition ________________________ 18 
E. Regional Competition Application Requirements ____________________________ 19 
F. Application Threshold Requirements _____________________________________ 20 
G. Rating Criteria (25 CCR § 8407) ________________________________________ 21 

IV.   Eligible Applicants _____________________________________________________ 24 
V. Eligible costs __________________________________________________________ 24 
VI. Implementation requirements _____________________________________________ 25 

A. Core Practices ______________________________________________________ 26 
B. Written Standards ___________________________________________________ 27 
C. Match _____________________________________________________________ 27 

VII.  Contract expenditure and obligation requirements ___________________________ 27 
VIII. State Overlays _________________________________________________________ 28 
IX.  Additional Federal Requirements __________________________________________ 28 

A.    General ___________________________________________________________ 28 
B.    Program Requirements _______________________________________________ 28 
C. Other Federal Requirements ___________________________________________ 29 

 
X    False, Fictitious or Fraudulent  Claims_______________________________________ 29 
XI. Application submittal requirements ________________________________________ 30 
Appendix A: Estimated BoS Formula Allocation _________________________________ 31 

 



 

 
Department of Housing and Community Development 1 
2023 Emergency Solutions Grants Program NOFA Balance of State Allocation  

 

I. Overview 
 

A. Notice of Funding Availability  
 

The California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) receives 
funding from the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) for 
the Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG) program. Approximately $5 million in new federal 
funds, as well as additional disencumbered funds that may become available later this 
year, will be allocated to the eligible Continuum of Care (CoC) Service Areas listed in 
Appendix A. 
 
The ESG program provides funding for the following objectives:  
 
• Engaging individuals and families experiencing homelessness;  
• Improving the quality of Emergency Shelters (ES) for individuals and families 

experiencing homelessness by helping to operate these shelters, and by providing 
essential services to shelter residents; 

• Rapidly re-housing individuals and families experiencing homelessness; and 
• Preventing families/individuals from becoming homeless.  
 
The funds are distributed in two separate funding pools: the CoC allocation and the 
Balance of State (BoS) allocation. Funding in the BoS allocation is made available based 
on recommendations from a CoC in two ways: 

 
1. Through regional competitions within three geographic regions (Northern Region, 

Bay Area Region, Central and Imperial Valley Region) pursuant to the California Code 
of Regulations (CCR), Title 25 CCR § 8404 (a) (3); and 
 

2. Through a non-competitive process for Rapid Re-Housing (RRH) activities. 
 

 
 
This NOFA outlines application requirements and timelines for CoCs and their 
recommended applicants (Applicant) for the BoS allocation. Please see the Authorizing 
Legislation Section for citations to the applicable program regulations. CoCs are 
responsible for recommending Applicants to HCD for funds available under this NOFA. 
CoC recommended Applicants can apply for both the non-competitive RRH funds and the 
regional competition funds.  

 

HUD ESG Funds

Balance of State 
Allocation

Non- Competitive Rapid 
Re-Housing Set-Aside 

Regional Competition 

CoC Allocation



 

 
Department of Housing and Community Development 2 
2023 Emergency Solutions Grants Program NOFA Balance of State Allocation  

 

All references to the “state” are references to the State of California. All references to ESG 
funding reference federal ESG funds administered by HCD unless otherwise noted.  
 

B. Tentative program timeline 
 

ESG NOFA and applications for the BoS allocation 
released: August 15, 2023 

Application deadline: October 16, 2023 

HCD announces BoS awards: January 2024 
 
 

C. New Requirements & Additions in the 2023 NOFA  
1. Environmental Review 

a. Units of general-purpose local government  

According to the requirements in the HUD Grant Agreement, Applicants for assistance that 
are units of general local government must agree to assume responsibility for environmental 
review, decision-making, and action under 24 CFR Part 58, “Environmental Review 
Procedures for Entities Assuming HUD Environmental Responsibilities” and shall comply 
with the environmental requirements of 24 CFR Part 58 including §58.4 “Assumption 
Authority.” If awarded funding, the obligation of funds and incurring of costs will be 
conditioned upon Applicants compliance with 24 CFR Part 58, and completion by HCD of all 
applicable review and approval requirements as specified in 24 CFR Part 58.18. 
 
The Applicant, its Service Providers (Service Providers), and any Subcontractors 
(Subcontractors) of the Applicant or its Service Provider (Service Provider) may not acquire, 
rehabilitate, convert, lease, repair, dispose of, demolish, or construct property for a project, or 
commit or expend ESG or local funds for eligible activities under this part, until the Applicant 
has performed an environmental review under 24 CFR Part 58 and the Applicant has 
received HCD approval if required by the level of environmental review. 
 
In accordance with 24 CFR §58.22, “Limitations on activities pending clearance” neither an 
Applicant nor any Service Provider in the development process, including public or private 
nonprofit or for-profit entities, or any of their contractors (Contractors), may commit HUD 
assistance under a program listed in 24 CFR §58.1(b) on an activity or project until the 
environmental review process is complete and, if required, HCD has approved the 
Applicant’s HUD Form 7015.5 “Request for Release of Funds and Certification” (RROF) and  
issued HUD Form 7015.16, “Authority to Use Grant Funds”.   
 
Neither the Applicant nor any Service Provider in the development process may commit non-
HUD funds or undertake an activity or project that would have an adverse environmental 
impact or limit the choice of reasonable alternatives. Upon completion of environmental 
review, HCD shall notify Applicant. HUD funds shall not be utilized before this requirement is 



 

 
Department of Housing and Community Development 3 
2023 Emergency Solutions Grants Program NOFA Balance of State Allocation  

 

satisfied. Violation of 24 CFR Part 58 may result in disapproval, modification, or cancellation 
of the ESG Grant.   
 
If awarded funding and if a project or activity is exempt under 24 CFR §58.34, “Exempt 
activities” or is categorically excluded (except in extraordinary circumstances) under 24 CFR 
Part 58.35(b) “Categorical exclusions not subject to §58.5”, no RROF is required, and the 
Applicant may undertake the activity immediately after they have provided documentation to 
HCD of its determination that each activity or project is exempt or categorically excluded. The 
Applicant remains responsible for carrying out any applicable requirements under §58.6, 
“Other Requirements” and must provide documentation to HCD at the time of grant 
monitoring of its compliance with this section of 24 CFR Part 58.  

 
If awarded funds, the Applicant is also subject to the provisions of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). The Standard Agreement will require that the Contractor 
assumes responsibility to fully comply with CEQA’s requirements.  

 
b. Non-profits 

The Applicant shall comply with the environmental requirements of 24 CFR Part 58. The 
obligation of funds and incurring of costs is hereby conditioned upon compliance with 24 
CFR Part 58 and completion by HCD and HUD of all applicable review and approval 
requirements. 
 
The Applicant shall supply all available, relevant information for its activities as well as the 
activities of all Service Providers, Subrecipients (Subrecipient) and/or Subcontractors, 
necessary for the Department to perform the appropriate level of environmental review as 
required under 24 CFR Part 58. The Applicant shall also carry out any required 
environmental mitigation measures which result from the environmental review and provide 
documentation to HCD to demonstrate that the mitigation measures have been fully 
implemented. HUD may eliminate from consideration any application that would require an 
Environmental Impact Statement (EIS).  
 
The Applicant, its Service Providers, or any Subcontractor of the Applicant or its Service 
Provider, may not acquire, rehabilitate, convert, lease, repair, dispose of, demolish, or 
construct property for a project, or commit or expend ESG or local funds for eligible activities 
under this part, until HCD has completed, and HUD has approved, if required by the level of 
review, the environmental review under 24 CFR Part 58 and until HUD has issued HUD 
Form 7015.16 “Authority to Use Grant Funds” based on HCD’s submission of HUD Form 
7015.15, “Request for Release of Funds”. 
 
In accordance with 24 CFR §58.22, neither an Applicant nor any Service Provider in the 
development process, including public or private nonprofit or for-profit entities, or any of their 
Contractors, may commit HUD assistance under a program listed in 24 CFR §58.1(b) on an 
activity or project until completion of the environmental review.   
 
Neither an Applicant nor any Service Provider in the development process may commit non-
HUD funds or undertake an activity or project that would have an adverse environmental 
impact or limit the choice of reasonable alternatives. Upon completion of environmental 
review or receipt of environmental clearance, the Department shall notify Applicant. HUD 



 

 
Department of Housing and Community Development 4 
2023 Emergency Solutions Grants Program NOFA Balance of State Allocation  

 

funds shall not be utilized before this requirement is satisfied. Violation of the provisions of 24 
CFR Part 58 may result in disapproval, modification, or cancellation of the ESG Grant.  
 
If awarded funding and if a project or activity is exempt under 24 CFR § 58.34, “Exempt 
activities” or is categorically excluded (except in extraordinary circumstances) under 24 CFR 
§58.35(b) “Categorical exclusions not subject to §58.5”, no RROF is required, and the 
recipient may undertake the activity immediately after the Applicant has been notified by 
HCD of its determination that each activity or project is exempt or categorically excluded and 
a funding award has been made. The Applicant remains responsible for carrying out any 
applicable requirements under §58.6, “Other Requirements” and must provide 
documentation to HCD prior to commitment of HUD funds for any activity of compliance with 
§58.6.  
 
If awarded funding, the standard agreement is subject to the provisions of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and the Applicant agrees to assume responsibility to fully 
comply with CEQA’s requirements.   
 
2. Match Exemption Application (Up to a maximum $100,000 will be awarded) 

a. General Requirement  
HCD requires each ESG Subrecipient to provide match equal to 100 percent of the ESG 
funds that HCD awards. The only exception is outlined in Section III.C.2 of the HCD ESG 
Match Policy.  
 
Applicants interested in applying for the match exemption must submit the request and 
required documentation at the time of their application via eCivis.  

 
Please note: The exemption request is only valid for the 2023 ESG 
applications/awards; no other funding year will apply under this application. Information 
noted below is not all inclusive. For specific HCD ESG policy information, please read 
the full document listed on our webpage here: “ESG Match Policy”. 

 
b. Match Exemption  
Under each fiscal year’s (FY) annual ESG allocation, HCD is not required to match 
the first $100,000 allocated. HCD is required to pass this benefit to the Subrecipient 
or Subrecipients who are least able to provide match.  

 
HCD uses its annual Subrecipient ESG application process to determine which 
Subrecipient(s) will receive the match exemption via the following process:  
 
• Each Subrecipient’s application will receive a ‘match exemption score’  
• The ‘match exemption score’ (up to a maximum of 10 points) is calculated as 
follows:  

o 2 points are allocated to the following Subrecipients, which are considered 
rural and therefore disproportionately likely to be under-resourced:1 
 Marin County CoC  

 
 
1 CA HCD reserves the right to amend this list at its discretion. 

https://www.hcd.ca.gov/sites/default/files/docs/grants-and-funding/esg/cahcd-esg-match-policy.pdf


 

 
Department of Housing and Community Development 5 
2023 Emergency Solutions Grants Program NOFA Balance of State Allocation  

 

 Napa City & County CoC  
 Vallejo/Solano County CoC  
 Watsonville/Santa Cruz City & County 
 Davis/Woodland/Yolo County CoC  
 El Dorado County CoC  
 Imperial County CoC  
 Inyo, Mono, Alpine Counties CoC  
 Merced City & County CoC  
 Roseville/Rocklin/Place County CoC  
 Santa Maria/Santa Barbara County CoC  
 Visalia, Kings, Tulare Counties CoC  
 Nevada County CoC  
 Amador, Calaveras, Tuolumne, and Mariposa Counties CoC  
 Chico/Paradise/Butte County CoC  
 Colusa, Glenn, Trinity Counties CoC  
 Humboldt County CoC  
 Lake County CoC  
 Mendocino County CoC  
 Redding/Shasta, Siskiyou, Lassen, Plumas, Del Norte, Modoc, Sierra 

Counties CoC  
 Tehama County CoC  
 Yuba City & County/Sutter County CoC 

 
o  3 points are allocated to Subrecipients that meet either of the following criteria:  

 During the annual monitoring process, HCD reported a concern or 
finding related to the Subrecipient’s difficulty producing the necessary 
level of match; or  

 During the previous year, the Subrecipient provided 75 percent or less of 
its match requirements. 
 

o  Up to 5 points are allocated to Subrecipients who indicate as part of their 
application that they would like to receive the match exemption; points will be 
awarded based on a short narrative in which Subrecipients will be asked to 
explain the circumstances that qualify them as unable to meet the match 
requirement, with more points being allocated to Subrecipients reporting greater 
relative need.  

If one Subrecipient receives the highest ‘match exemption score,’ that Subrecipient 
will receive the full $100,000 match exemption; if multiple Subrecipients receive the 
highest ‘match exemption score,’ the match exemption will be divided among no 
more than two of the highest-scoring Subrecipients, at HCD’s sole discretion; 

HCD has final decision on which Subrecipient(s) benefit from the match exemption 
and its decision cannot be appealed. 

 
3. Street Outreach Requirements (SO) 

All Applicants that are awarded funding for the street outreach (Street Outreach or “SO”) activity 
are now required to develop and implement written policies and procedures (P&Ps) that fully 



 

 
Department of Housing and Community Development 6 
2023 Emergency Solutions Grants Program NOFA Balance of State Allocation  

 

details their ESG-SO operations. At minimum, they must include the following content 
pieces:  

a. Written Standards; 
b. Coverage Area; 
c. Coordinated Entry Integration; 
d. Participant Eligibility; 
e. Suite of Services; 
f. Staffing Patterns; 
g. Housing Problem-solving; 

i. Diversion 
ii. Rapid Exit 

h. Other Requirements; and 
i. General Operations. 

 
A Street Outreach Policy has been developed and is available to all ESG CoCs and 
stakeholders for guidance on operating their SO programs. Please see the ESG Webpage, 
Resources:  https://www.hcd.ca.gov/sites/default/files/docs/grants-and-funding/esg/ca-hcd-esg-
street-outreach-policy.pdf. 

4. Emergency Shelter Requirements (ES) 

All Applicants that are awarded funding for the Emergency Shelter activity are now required to 
develop and implement written policies and procedures (P&Ps) that fully details their ESG-ES 
operations. At minimum, they must include the following content pieces:  

a. Written Standards; 
b. Coordinated Entry Integration; 
c. Participant Eligibility; 
d. Suite of Services; 
e. Staffing Patterns; 
f. Housing Problem-solving; 

i. Diversion 
ii. Rapid Exit 

g. General Operations; 
h. Other Requirements; and 
i. Approval. 

 
An Emergency Shelter Policy has been developed and is available to all ESG CoCs and 
stakeholders for guidance on operating their ES programs. Please see the ESG Webpage, 
Resources:  https://www.hcd.ca.gov/sites/default/files/docs/grants-and-funding/esg/ca-hcd-esg-
emergency-shelter-policy.pdf. 

5. Rapid Re-Housing Requirements (RRH) 

All Applicant’s that are awarded funding for the Rapid Re-Housing activity are now required to 
develop and implement written policies and procedures (P&Ps) that fully details their ESG-RRH 
operations. At minimum, they must include the following content pieces:  

1. Coordinated Entry Integration; 

https://www.hcd.ca.gov/sites/default/files/docs/grants-and-funding/esg/ca-hcd-esg-street-outreach-policy.pdf
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/sites/default/files/docs/grants-and-funding/esg/ca-hcd-esg-street-outreach-policy.pdf
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/sites/default/files/docs/grants-and-funding/esg/ca-hcd-esg-emergency-shelter-policy.pdf
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/sites/default/files/docs/grants-and-funding/esg/ca-hcd-esg-emergency-shelter-policy.pdf


 

 
Department of Housing and Community Development 7 
2023 Emergency Solutions Grants Program NOFA Balance of State Allocation  

 

2. Participant Eligibility; 
3. Suite of Services; 
4. Staffing Patterns; 
5. Termination and Appeals; 
6. Other Requirements; 
7. General Operations; and 
8. Approval. 

 
A Rapid Re-Housing Manual has been developed and is available to all ESG CoCs and 
stakeholders for guidance on operating their RRH programs. Please see the ESG Webpage, 
Resources:  https://www.hcd.ca.gov/sites/default/files/docs/grants-and-funding/ESG-Rapid-
Rehousing-Manual.pdf. 
 
6.  Single Audit and Form 990 Required with Submission of Applications 

All Applicants must demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Department that they are following the 
financial management requirements of 2 CFR Part 200.      

If applicable, the Applicant must provide the Department with its most recent single audit (as 
submitted to the State Controller’s Office), as well as the latest filed Form 990. If the Applicant 
has any open single audit findings and does not have a plan or an agreement to remediate 
those findings, the Applicant will be deemed ineligible for funding through the State ESG 
program until the findings are resolved or a remediation plan or agreement is established.  

All single audit findings are included in this evaluation. This requirement is not limited to 
federal funds administered by the Department. If an Applicant is not subject to single audit 
requirements, the Applicant is not required to submit an audit, however the Applicant is 
required to certify as such. Applicants that fail to disclose findings on their most recent single 
audit will be disqualified without exception or appeal.  
 
7.  Homelessness Prevention Requirements (HP) (Reminder) 

All Applicants that are awarded funding for the Homelessness Prevention activity are now 
required to develop and implement written policies and procedures (P&Ps) that fully detail their 
ESG-HP operations. At minimum, they must include the following content pieces:  

o Participant Triage; 
o Coordinated Entry Integration; 
o Participant Eligibility; 
o Suite of Services; 
o Staffing Patterns; 
o Termination and Appeals; 
o Other Requirements; 
o General Operations; and 
o Approval. 

 
A Homelessness Prevention Manual has been developed and is available to all ESG CoCs and 
stakeholders for guidance on operating their HP programs. Please see the ESG Webpage, 
Resources:  https://www.hcd.ca.gov/sites/default/files/docs/grants-and-funding/esg/cahcd-esg-
homelessness-prevention-policy.pdf. 

https://www.hcd.ca.gov/sites/default/files/docs/grants-and-funding/ESG-Rapid-Rehousing-Manual.pdf
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/sites/default/files/docs/grants-and-funding/ESG-Rapid-Rehousing-Manual.pdf
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/2/part-200
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/sites/default/files/docs/grants-and-funding/esg/cahcd-esg-homelessness-prevention-policy.pdf
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/sites/default/files/docs/grants-and-funding/esg/cahcd-esg-homelessness-prevention-policy.pdf


 

 
Department of Housing and Community Development 8 
2023 Emergency Solutions Grants Program NOFA Balance of State Allocation  

 

8.  Expenditure Milestones (Reminder) 

Applicants that are awarded funding under this 2023 BoS allocation will be required to meet 
the following expenditure milestones. This is stated in the 2023 ESG Standard Agreement, 
Exhibit E. Provision Ex. A – E.3 (Expenditure Milestone Requirements - As referenced in 
Exhibit A, Section 4 (G)).  

 
Percentage of ESG Award 

that must be expended 
Milestone Deadline 

 
20% 120 days after execution of 

contract 
50% 180 days prior to expenditure 

deadline 
80% 60 days prior to expenditure 

deadline 
 

9. Grants Management System (GMS) (Reminder) 
 
The implementation of the new eCivis Grants Management System (GMS) is called “Grants 
Network”. Grants Network will allow Applicants to apply for ESG funding online and will track 
the status of their application once submitted. This new system is easier to navigate and 
does not require Applicants to submit hard copies of the application to HCD. Grants Network 
will support programs and projects from application through to implementation and closeout 
and will connect with other digital accounting and reporting systems used by both the 
Department and HUD. HCD will only be accepting the 2023 ESG applications and all 
supporting documentation through the GMS. 

 
2023 ESG Applications must be accessed through the eCivis portal - Programs Available for 
Solicitation page. Paper binder applications will no longer be required or accepted.  

   
10.  Advancing Racial Equity (Reminder) 

 
Pursuant to direction from HUD, as provided at the links below, Applicants should prioritize 
the advancement of racial equity at all levels of the homeless response system. The 
Department asks Contractors to be leaders in their homeless response systems, 
facilitating partnerships among service organizations and promoting racial equity practices. 
Contractors must respond to disproportionality in access to services, service provision and 
outcomes. Contractors cannot simply rely on delivering a standardization of services to 
address equity. Contractors have the responsibility to examine their data to ensure all 
eligible persons receive equitable services, support, and are served with dignity, respect, 
and compassion regardless of circumstances, ability, or identity.  

When applying for ESG funds, Applicants should consider:  

• What are your community’s racial demographics and the demographics of those 
within your homeless response system? 

• In your community’s captured data, what are the outcomes of the homeless 
response system based on race? What are your requirements for all 

https://gn.ecivis.com/GO/gn_redir/T/vyjsqf2kekyx
https://gn.ecivis.com/GO/gn_redir/T/vyjsqf2kekyx


 

 
  

       
 

   
 

    
   

  

     
    

   
 

     
    

     
   

      
    

   
      

      
    

 

     
      

    
        
   

     
    
      

 

     
     

  

 

 
   

     
   

     
     

 
      
    

Subcontractors to analyze data to determine racial disparities and then put a plan in 
place to address them? 

• How do underserved and marginalized communities learn about and enter ESG 
programming? What marketing and communication strategies are used to increase 
equitable access to ESG programming? 

• How does your grant making process include prioritization for programs that are 
addressing the disproportionate impacts that homelessness has on communities of 
color, particularly Black, Latinx, Asian, Pacific Islander, and Native and Indigenous 
communities? 

• How are the voices of Black, Latinx, Asian, Pacific Islander, Native and Indigenous 
communities, and those with lived experience of homelessness, being centered in a 
meaningful, sustained way in creating effective approaches to reducing and ending 
homelessness? How are they involved in the funding decision-making process? 

• How are these funds accessible to smaller and non-traditional organizations that 
have historically been serving communities of color but may not have previously 
participated formally in the CoC or be a part of the homeless Service Provider 
community, and how would these funds address the organizational capacity of 
organizations that are led by Black, Latinx, Asian, Pacific Islander, and Native and 
Indigenous people that support the goal of making homelessness rare, brief, and 
non-recurring? 

• List your partner organizations that are addressing racial equity in the housing and 
homeless response system, and how do you partner with them? 

The Department will require Applicants to submit related racial and ethnic data metrics of 
the homeless population and those served by the CoC Service Area from their Homeless 
Management Information System (HMIS) on a quarterly reporting basis. 

The Department recommends that Contractors refer to and utilize the Racial Equity Tools 
available on the HUD Exchange to inform efforts to advance racial equity within the 
homeless response system. The tools are available at the following link: 
https://www.hudexchange.info/news/new-coc-racial-equity-analysis-tool/. 

The Department also encourages Contractors to refer to the Increasing Equity in the 
Homeless Response System through Expanding Procurement Tool from the HUD 
Exchange to help guide practices in this area at the following link: 
https://www.hudexchange.info/resource/6083/covid19-homeless-system-response-
increasing-equity-in-the-homeless-response-system-through-expanding-procurement/.  

D. Authorizing Legislation 
Federal funding under this NOFA is made available pursuant to Subtitle B of Title IV of the 
McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act. This NOFA should be read in conjunction with 
the following regulations that establish state and federal ESG requirements. Relevant legal 
authority includes, but is not limited to, the following: 

• Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Title 24, Part 576; 
• 25 CCR, Division 1, Chapter 7, Subchapter 20; 

Department of Housing and Community Development 9 
2023 Emergency Solutions Grants Program NOFA Balance of State Allocation 

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-24/subtitle-B/chapter-V/subchapter-C/part-576/subpart-A/section-576.2
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-24/subtitle-B/chapter-V/subchapter-C/part-576/subpart-A/section-576.2
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I69448360D45511DEB97CF67CD0B99467&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=Default&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://www.hudexchange.info/news/new-coc-racial-equity-analysis-tool/
https://www.hudexchange.info/resource/6083/covid19-homeless-system-response-increasing-equity-in-the-homeless-response-system-through-expanding-procurement/
https://www.hudexchange.info/resource/6083/covid19-homeless-system-response-increasing-equity-in-the-homeless-response-system-through-expanding-procurement/


 

 
Department of Housing and Community Development 10 
2023 Emergency Solutions Grants Program NOFA Balance of State Allocation  

 

• 24 CFR Part 91 relating to Annual Action Plan requirements; 
• 24 CFR Part 58, relating to environmental reviews; 
• The ESG Program Interim Rule was first published in the Federal Register on December 5, 

2011, and became effective on January 4, 2012. The public comment period for the ESG rule 
closed on February 3, 2012. A second public comment period in which HUD was seeking 
additional feedback and comment on certain, limited provisions of the ESG Program Interim 
Rule closed on August 3, 2015. An updated version of the ESG Program Interim Rule was 
published in the Federal Register on April 1, 2017. 

• Chronically Homeless Definition Final Rule: The Interim Rule, published in the Federal Register 
on December 4, 2015, cited above, provides the chronically homeless definition that applies to 
the ESG program; 

• Office of Management and Budget (OMB) requirements for Universal Identifier and Central 
Contractor Registration, 2 CFR Part 25, Appendix A to Part 25. 

 
If state or federal statutes or regulations, or other laws relating to the ESG program are 
modified by Congress, HUD, HCD, or the State Legislature, the changes may become 
effective immediately and impact the work that was awarded funding under this NOFA.  
 
If there is a conflict between the state and federal regulations, the federal regulations shall 
prevail. In addition, HCD reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to suspend or amend the 
provisions of this NOFA. If such an action occurs, HCD will notify interested parties. 
Awards made under this NOFA are also contingent upon HCD receiving an award letter 
from HUD for 2023.  

 
E. Role of Continuum of Care in the BoS Allocation 

CoCs play an integral role in recommending homeless Service Provider Applicants who 
compete for funds through their local procurement process. Applications from homeless 
Service Providers shall only be considered if they are recommended by the CoC where 
the proposed Activity is located. CoCs are required to submit the CoC recommendation 
package, which can be found in the eCivis Grants Network System, ESG Balance of State 
Solicitation page.  
 
• For single-county CoCs, a maximum of two applications may be recommended by 

each CoC for the regional competition and a maximum of two applications may be 
recommended by each CoC for its noncompetitive funds.  
 

• For multi-county CoCs, a maximum of three applications may be recommended by 
each CoC for the regional competition and a maximum of three applications may be 
recommended by each CoC for its noncompetitive funds. 

 
In making these recommendations, the CoC must follow a fair and open process that 
meets the requirements of 25 CCR § 8404. In addition, CoCs must submit a letter of 
recommendation that certifies the Service Provider selection process was compliant with 
the requirements of 25 CCR Sections: 8404, 8408, and 8409. Among other things, CoCs 
are responsible for ensuring that the Service Provider will: 
 
• Provide eligible sources of matching funds;  

https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2011-12-05/pdf/2011-30938.pdf
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/part-58
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/2/appendix-A_to_part_25
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/2/appendix-A_to_part_25


 

 
Department of Housing and Community Development 11 
2023 Emergency Solutions Grants Program NOFA Balance of State Allocation  

 

• Operate consistently with system-wide written standards, adopted by the CoC for the 
proposed eligible Activity;  

• Enter data into the applicable community-wide Homeless Management Information 
System (HMIS) operated by the CoC; and 

• Use the CoC’s Coordinated Entry System (CES) in a manner that prioritizes access to 
people with the most severe needs and otherwise promotes consistency with the 
Core Practices.  

 
II. BoS Non-competitive Funding 

 
F. Overview  

Subject to the maximum number of applications (discussed in the above section), CoCs 
are responsible for recommending homeless Service Providers for non-competitive RRH 
funds for a minimum of 40 percent and up to a maximum of 50 percent of ESG funds in 
their BoS formula allocation as listed in Appendix A. In making this recommendation, 
CoCs shall use a process that meets the following requirements: 
 
1. Is a fair and open competition that avoids conflicts of interest in project selection, 

implementation, and the administration of funds; 
2. Considers selection criteria reasonably consistent with the criteria identified in the BoS 

regional competition; 
3. Complies with the Core Practice requirements in 25 CCR § 8409;  
4. Incorporates the performance standards set forth in HCD’s Annual Action Plan; 
5. Complies with federal and applicable state ESG regulations; 
6. Considers any other practices promoted or required by HUD; and 
7. Ensures the funded homeless Service Provider(s) maintain documentation of 

satisfactory match pursuant to the requirements of 24 CFR Part 576.201. 
 

Note: 25 CCR § 8408(e) prohibits subpopulation targeting with ESG funds in 
Homelessness Prevention (HP) and Rapid Re-Housing (RRH) programs except if 
documentation of both of the following is provided to HCD prior to the award of funds for 
these activities: 
 
1. Evidence of an unmet need for these activities for the subpopulation proposed for 

targeting. 
 

2. Evidence of existing funding in the CoC Service Area for programs that address the 
needs of the excluded populations for these activities. 

 
G. Annual Action Plan requirements 

The following requirements regarding the BoS activities are in HCD’s Annual Action Plan. 
Pursuant to 24 CFR Part 91, the Annual Action Plan is required by HUD and governs the 
distribution and use of ESG funds allocated by HUD to states and local governments. 
CoCs must adhere to these requirements as part of their Service Provider 
recommendation process.  

 



 

 
Department of Housing and Community Development 12 
2023 Emergency Solutions Grants Program NOFA Balance of State Allocation  

 

H. Amounts available for Administrative Activities 
Recommended local government Contractors may request up to $200 of federal ESG 
funds to pay for direct administrative costs2. 
 

I. Eligible Activities 
As identified and codified in the state ESG regulations3, all eligible activities (Activities) are 
detailed in the federal ESG regulations, 24 CFR § 576.  Pursuant to the state authority, 
Activities that are specifically not eligible include: renovation, conversion, or major 
rehabilitation; said Activities are restricted under 24 CFR Part § 576.102. Minor repairs to 
an ESG-funded ES that do not qualify as renovation, conversion, or major rehabilitation 
are an eligible use of state ESG funds (25 CCR § 8408(d)). 
 
The following additional limitations apply: 

 
Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) 

 
ESG funds may be used for HMIS Activities associated with contributing data derived 
from ESG-funded programs. As defined in state regulations, HMIS includes the use of a 
comparable database as permitted by HUD. Costs cannot exceed 10 percent of the total 
amount requested per application. HMIS Activities must comply with HUD’s standards on 
participation, data collection, and reporting. See 24 CFR § 576.107 for a complete list of 
eligible HMIS costs.  
 
Rapid Re-Housing (RRH) Assistance and 10 Percent Combination Applications  
 
ESG funds may be used to provide housing relocation and stabilization services and short- 
or medium-term rental assistance as necessary to help a homeless individual or family 
move as quickly as possible into permanent housing and achieve stability in that housing.  

 
A minimum of 40 percent and up to a maximum of 50 percent of a CoC’s BoS formula 
allocation may be accessed non-competitively for Rapid Re-Housing.   
 
In combination with their Rapid Re-Housing activity, Applicants may request the 
following ‘add-ons’ to their non-competitive Rapid Re-Housing application: 

• Up to 10 percent of the total application for Street Outreach; 
• Up to 10 percent of the total application for Homelessness Prevention;  
• Up to 10 percent of the total application for HMIS. 

 
RRH Activities must meet all the HUD requirements specified at 24 CFR § 576.104, 
24 CFR § 576.105, and 24 CFR § 576.106, including, but not limited to, requirements for:  
 
• Eligible program participants; 
• Eligible costs, including financial assistance costs and services costs; 
• Maximum amounts and periods of assistance; 

 
 
2 24 CFR Part 576.108 
3 25 CCR 8408 



 

 
Department of Housing and Community Development 13 
2023 Emergency Solutions Grants Program NOFA Balance of State Allocation  

 

• Use with other subsidies; 
• Limitations on maximum rent levels; 
• Rental assistance agreement with owner; 
• Lease agreement between owner and participant; and 
• Condition of housing where assistance is provided. 
 
Note: Rental assistance payments provided as part of an RRH or HP Activity under 
24 CFR Part 576.106 typically cannot exceed HUD’s Fair Market Rent (FMR)4. Assistance 
must also comply with HUD’s standard for rent reasonableness5. Requests for exceptions 
to the FMR can be made to HUD through HCD and must be approved in writing by HUD. 
Contact your HCD Representative in the Federal Programs Branch for further assistance. 

 
In addition to federal requirements6, no subpopulation targeting will be permitted in RRH 
Activities unless documentation of the following is provided to HCD prior to the award of 
funds for these Activities:  
 
1. Evidence of an unmet need for these Activities for the subpopulation proposed for 

targeting; and 
 

2. Evidence of existing funding in the CoC Service Area for programs that address the 
needs of the excluded populations for these Activities. 

 
J. Terms of Assistance  

Minimum and maximum grant limits  
 
There will be no individual application minimum and maximum grant amounts established 
by the state for the non-competitive RRH set-aside. The CoC shall determine the amounts 
of each individual application.  
 
Maximum number of applications, contracts, and subcontracts  
 
1. Under the non-competitive allocation, for single county CoCs, no more than two 

applications shall be recommended by the CoC and submitted to HCD. HCD will award 
no more than two non-competitive allocation contracts per single-county CoC Service 
Area. For multi-county CoCs, no more than three applications shall be recommended 
by the CoC and submitted to HCD. HCD will award no more than three non-
competitive allocation contracts per multi-county CoC Service Area. 

 
2. There are two types of subcontracting permitted under ESG. 

 
A subcontract does not absolve the Contractor from any responsibility or liability to 
HCD. The Contractor is fully liable and responsible for ensuring that the Subcontractor 
adheres to all state and federal laws and regulations in carrying out its services or 
Activities. 

 
 
4 24 CFR Part 888 
5 24 CFR Part 982.507 
6 25 CCR § 8408 



 

 
Department of Housing and Community Development 14 
2023 Emergency Solutions Grants Program NOFA Balance of State Allocation  

 

 
a. Subcontracting for services provided to the funded program. Procuring services 

related to carrying out the funded program is permissible. Examples: security, 
supportive services, food services. Federal procurement rules may apply.  
 

b. Applications that contain multiple ESG-eligible Activities as permitted under HCD’s 
Annual Action Plan or this NOFA may subcontract with separate Service Providers 
for those ESG-eligible Activities. For example, RRH programs that request funds 
for both RRH and HMIS may subcontract with a different entity for their HMIS.  
 

Notwithstanding the above, contracting with, or in any way assigning the ESG grant in 
part or whole to another Service Provider for any Activity is strictly prohibited and will 
forfeit any associated awarded monies, unless approved in writing by HCD. 

 
The following table summarizes eligible ESG Activities under the non-competitive  
Rapid Re-Housing set-aside:  
 

ACTIVITY 
ALLOWABLE ESG AMOUNTS AND PERCENTAGES PER 

APPLICATION UNDER NON-COMPETITIVE RRH SET-ASIDE 
(Unless otherwise noted) 

For single-county CoCs, up to two applications may be submitted.  
For multi-county CoCs, up to three applications may be submitted.  

Rapid  
Re-Housing  

Non-competitive set-aside: Per allocation, CoC must elect a 
minimum of 40 percent and a maximum of 50 percent of their BoS 
formula allocation.  

Street 
Outreach 

Up to a maximum of 10 percent of a total application request 
when requested in combination with RRH. The SO Activity may 
be subcontracted to another eligible Service Provider or may be 
provided directly by the Applicant.  

Homelessness 
Prevention  

Up to a maximum of 10 percent of a total application request 
when requested in combination with RRH. The HP Activity may 
be subcontracted to another eligible Service Provider or may be 
provided directly by the Applicant.  

HMIS Up to a maximum of 10 percent per application. The HMIS Activity 
may be provided directly by the Applicant or may be subcontracted 
to another eligible Service Provider. 

Grant 
Administration 

Local government Service Providers may request up to $200 per 
application for Grant Administration.  

 
Note: Applicants are urged to consult the relevant state and federal regulations for full 
requirements associated with each Activity. 
 

 
 
 



 

 
Department of Housing and Community Development 15 
2023 Emergency Solutions Grants Program NOFA Balance of State Allocation  

 

III. BoS Regional Competitive Requirements 
 
A. Amounts available for Administrative Activities:  

 
Recommended local government Service Providers may request up to $200 of ESG 
funds. 
 

B. Eligible Activities: 
 
All Applicants must obtain a recommendation from their CoC. Under the regional 
competition, for single-county CoCs, no more than two applications shall be recommended 
by the CoC and submitted to HCD. HCD will award no more than two contracts through 
the regional competition per single-county CoC Service Area.  
 
For multi-county CoCs, no more than three applications shall be recommended by the 
CoC and submitted to HCD. HCD will award no more than three contracts through the 
regional competition per multi-county CoC Service Area. 
 
The following Activities are eligible under the BoS regional competition: 
 
1. Pursuant to state ESG Regulation 25 CCR § 8408, all Activities permitted under the 

federal ESG regulations, 24 CFR § 576, shall be eligible except for renovation, 
conversion, or major rehabilitation Activities under 24 CFR Part 576.102. Minor 
repairs to an ESG-funded ES that do not qualify as renovation, conversion, or major 
rehabilitation are an eligible use of state ESG funds. (25 CCR § 8408(d)). 
 

2. The following additional limitations apply: 
 
Homeless Management Information System (HMIS)  
ESG funds may be used for HMIS Activities associated with contributing data derived 
from ESG-funded programs. As defined in the state ESG regulations, HMIS includes 
the use of a comparable database as permitted by HUD. HMIS Activities must comply 
with HUD’s standards on participation, data collection, and reporting. See the federal 
regulations for a complete list of eligible HMIS costs. HMIS is limited to 10 percent of 
the total application amount.  
 
Rapid Re-Housing (RRH) Assistance and 10 Percent Combination Applications 
and Street Outreach (SO) and Homelessness Prevention (HP)  
ESG funds may be used to provide housing relocation and stabilization services, and 
short- or medium-term rental assistance, as necessary to help a homeless individual or 
family move as quickly as possible into permanent housing and achieve stability in that 
housing.   
 
Rapid Re-Housing may be requested as a stand-alone Activity or Applicants may 
request up to 10 percent per RRH application for SO and 10 percent per RRH 
application for HP without having to apply separately. The SO and/or HP Activity may 
be provided directly by the Applicant or may be subcontracted to another eligible 
Service Provider. Stand-alone SO applications are also permitted. Stand-alone 
HP applications are not permitted. 



 

 
Department of Housing and Community Development 16 
2023 Emergency Solutions Grants Program NOFA Balance of State Allocation  

 

 
Rapid Re-Housing Activities must meet all the HUD requirements specified at 24 CFR 
Part 576.104 including, but not limited to, requirements for:  
 
• Eligible program participants; 
• Eligible costs, including financial assistance costs and services costs; 
• Maximum amounts and periods of assistance; 
• Use with other subsidies; 
• Limitations on maximum rent levels; 
• Rental assistance agreement with owner;  
• Lease agreement between owner and participant; and 
• Condition of housing where assistance is provided. 

 
Note: Rental assistance payments provided as part of an RRH or HP Activity under 
24 CFR Part 576.106 typically cannot exceed HUD’s FMR as provided under 24 CFR 
Part 888 and must comply with HUD’s standard for rent reasonableness as 
established under 24 CFR Part 982.507. Request for exceptions to FMR can be made 
to HUD through HCD and must be approved in writing by HUD. Contact your HCD 
Representative in the Federal Programs Branch for further assistance. 
 
In addition to federal requirements, pursuant to 25 CCR § 8408, no subpopulation 
targeting will be permitted in RRH Activities unless documentation of both of the 
following is provided to HCD prior to the award of funds for these Activities: 

 
1. Evidence of an unmet need for these Activities for the subpopulation proposed for 

targeting. 
 

2. Evidence of existing funding in the CoC Service Area for programs that address 
the needs of the excluded populations for these Activities. 

 
Emergency Shelter (ES)  
ESG funds may be used to cover the cost of providing essential services and shelter 
operations, as defined in the federal regulations 24 CFR § 576.102, to homeless 
individuals and families in an ES. An ES is any facility where the primary purpose is 
to provide a temporary shelter for general or specific populations experiencing 
homelessness and that does not require occupants to sign leases or occupancy 
agreements. Hotel or motel vouchers may only be used as ES if there is no other 
appropriate ES available for a homeless individual or family. State and federal ESG 
regulations do not impose a maximum length of stay on ES Activities. Consistent with 
the state’s Core Practices in 25 CCR § 8409 (b), programs should seek to help 
participants quickly identify barriers to obtaining and maintaining housing, and quickly 
resolve their housing crisis before providing other non-related housing services. 
Federal regulations prohibit involuntary family separation for children under the age 
of 18.  

 
ESG-funded ES Activities must operate for the full term of the ESG grant contract 
and must comply with all requirements of 24 CFR Part 576.101, which addresses 
maintenance of effort requirements to ensure ESG funds are not replacing local 



 

 
Department of Housing and Community Development 17 
2023 Emergency Solutions Grants Program NOFA Balance of State Allocation  

 

government funds during the immediate 12-month period before the ESG contract 
takes effect.  

 
Day Shelters 
A day shelter must meet the criteria in the ES definition to compete as an ES. The 
primary purpose of a day shelter must be to provide temporary shelter for persons 
experiencing homelessness. Facilities such as multi-purpose centers or stand-alone 
soup kitchens do not qualify as an ES. Day shelters must target people who are 
sleeping on the streets, living in places not designed for human habitation, or in an 
ES. Clients experiencing such homelessness must be permitted to stay at the day 
shelter during all hours it is open for shelter.  

 
Street Outreach  
ESG funds may be used for SO Activities that include the costs of providing essential 
services necessary to reach out to unsheltered homeless people, connect these 
individuals with ES, housing, or critical services, and provide urgent, non-facility-based 
care to unsheltered homeless people who are unwilling or unable to access ES, 
housing, or an appropriate health facility.  
 
Eligible Activities include engagement, case management, emergency health and 
mental health services, transportation, and services for special populations, as defined 
in the federal regulations 24 CFR § 576.101. ESG-funded SO Activities must operate 
for at least as long as the term of the ESG grant and must comply with the 
requirements at 24 CFR Part 576.101(c), which addresses maintenance of effort 
requirements to ensure ESG funds are not replacing local government funds during the 
immediate 12-month period before the ESG contract takes effect.  
 
While SO is an eligible stand-alone Activity, it may also be proposed in conjunction with 
RRH or ES. SO is included with RRH or ES to facilitate reaching and prioritizing 
persons experiencing homelessness, who are unsheltered and living in places not 
designed for human habitation for services, consistent with the state’s Core Practices7. 

 
Homelessness Prevention (HP)  
HP Activities are not eligible as a stand-alone Activity but may be proposed in 
conjunction with ES (for example, to facilitate shelter diversion) or with RRH Activities 
(for example, to facilitate preventing homelessness of a previously assisted individual 
or family experiencing instability after RRH assistance has ended). 
 
ESG funds can provide housing relocation and stabilization services and short- or 
medium-term rental assistance to individuals or families “at risk of homelessness” 8, but 
only to the extent of helping the individuals or families regain housing stability.  
 

 
 
7 25 CCR § 8409 
8 24 CFR Part 576.2 
 



 

 
Department of Housing and Community Development 18 
2023 Emergency Solutions Grants Program NOFA Balance of State Allocation  

 

In addition to federal requirements, pursuant to 25 CCR § 8408(e), no subpopulation 
targeting will be permitted in HP Activities unless documentation of both of the 
following is provided to HCD prior to the award of funds for these Activities:  
 
1. Evidence of an unmet need for these Activities for the subpopulation proposed for 

targeting; and 
 

2. Evidence of existing funding in the CoC Service Area for programs that address the 
needs of the excluded populations for these Activities.  

 
C. Terms of Assistance  

Minimum and maximum grant limits  
 
Each application submitted must be for a minimum of $75,000 and a maximum of 
$200,000. These amounts include all eligible Activities, including HMIS, and indirect costs. 
 
1. There are two types of subcontracting permitted under ESG. A subcontract does not 

absolve the Contractor from any responsibility or liability to HCD. The Contractor is 
fully responsible for ensuring that the Subcontractor adheres to all state and federal 
laws and regulations in carrying out its services or Activities. 
 
a. Subcontracting for services provided to the funded program. Procuring services 

related to carrying out the funded program is permissible. Examples: security, 
supportive services, food services. Federal procurement rules may apply. 
 

b. Applications that contain multiple ESG-eligible Activities as permitted under HCD’s 
Annual Action Plan or this NOFA may subcontract with separate Service Providers 
for those ESG-eligible Activities. For example, RRH programs that request funds 
for both RRH and HMIS may subcontract with a different entity for their HMIS. 

 
Notwithstanding the above, contracting with, or in any way assigning the ESG grant in part 
or whole to another Service Provider for any Activity is strictly prohibited, unless approved 
in writing by HCD. 
 
 

D. The following table summarizes the eligible ESG Activities under the regional 
competition. 

ACTIVITY 
ALLOWABLE ESG AMOUNTS AND PERCENTAGES PER APPLICATION 

UNDER THE REGIONAL COMPETITION 
(Unless otherwise noted) 

For single-county CoCs, up to two applications may be submitted.  
For multi-county CoCs, up to three applications may be submitted.  

Rapid Re-Housing Regional competition: $75,000 minimum, $200,000 maximum per application.  

Emergency Shelter $75,000 minimum, $200,000 maximum per application. 

Street Outreach $75,000 minimum, $200,000 maximum per application as a stand-alone 
Activity, or up to a maximum of 10 percent of a total application (not to exceed 
$20,000) when requested in addition to RRH or ES. The SO Activity may be 



 

 
Department of Housing and Community Development 19 
2023 Emergency Solutions Grants Program NOFA Balance of State Allocation  

 

ACTIVITY 
ALLOWABLE ESG AMOUNTS AND PERCENTAGES PER APPLICATION 

UNDER THE REGIONAL COMPETITION 
(Unless otherwise noted) 

subcontracted to another eligible Service Provider or may be provided directly 
by the Applicant. 

Homelessness 
Prevention 

Up to a maximum of 10 percent of a total application request (not to exceed 
$20,000) when requested in combination with RRH or ES. The HP Activity 
may be subcontracted to another eligible Service Provider or may be provided 
directly by the Applicant. No stand-alone HP applications are permitted. 

HMIS Up to a maximum of 10 percent per application (not to exceed $20,000). The 
HMIS Activity may be subcontracted to another eligible Service Provider or 
may be provided directly by the Applicant.  

Grant 
Administration 

Local government Service Providers may request up to $200 per application. 

 Note:  Applicant’s budgets must identify a ‘primary’ activity.   

Note: Applicants are urged to consult the relevant state and federal regulations for all requirements 
associated with each Activity. 
 

E. Regional Competition Application Requirements: 
CoC Application Recommendations 
 
Applications shall only be considered if they are recommended by the CoC where the 
proposed Activity is located. CoCs are required to submit the CoC recommendation 
package through the https://portal.ecivis.com/#/login. 
 
Recommended applications may not include funding requests of less than $75,000 or 
more than $200,000. In recommending Applicants through the regional competition, the 
CoC must follow a procurement process consistent with 25 CCR § 8404(a)(4) including, 
but not limited to, the following: 
 
B. Conducting a fair and open competition that avoids conflicts of interest in project 

selection, implementation, and the administration of funds; and 
 

C. Considering state application eligibility and rating criteria as described in the 
“Application Threshold Requirements,” “Application Submittal Requirements,” and the 
“Rating Criteria” sections of this NOFA. 
 

Selecting an eligible Activity or Activities to be offered consistent with the state’s Core 
Practices as described in 25 CCR § 8408 and § 8409. To document that the Service 
Provider selection process meets ESG requirements, the CoC must submit the following: 
 
1. A letter or other documentation that describes the Service Provider selection process 

and certifies that their process meets the requirements of 25 CCR Sections: 8404, 
8408, and 8409. 

 
2. The Applicant-ranking list that shows for each application recommended for 

funding: (a) the Applicant name and address; (b) project name and address; (c) 

https://portal.ecivis.com/#/login


 

 
Department of Housing and Community Development 20 
2023 Emergency Solutions Grants Program NOFA Balance of State Allocation  

 

proposed Activities and proposed subpopulation targeting, if any, with ESG 
funds;(d) city(ies) and county(ies) where proposed Activities will be provided; and 
(e)dollar amounts recommended for funding by Activity. 

 
3. For each application not recommended for funding: (a) the Applicant name and 
 address; (b) project name and address; (c) proposed Activities and proposed 
 subpopulation targeting, if any, with ESG funds; (d) city(ies) and county(ies) where 
 the Activities were proposed; and (e) dollar amounts requested by Activity. 

 
F. Application Threshold Requirements 

 
An application must meet the following threshold requirements to be eligible for rating and 
ranking:  
 
1. Applicants must follow instructions in both this NOFA and the online application. 

Failure to follow instructions will result in disqualification. 
 

2. The ESG application and all required attachments must be submitted to HCD through 
the eCivis Portal located at https://portal.ecivis.com/#/login. Applications must include 
all required information to be submitted. 

 
3. The application was complete and received by the deadline. 

 
4. The Applicant is eligible as described in Section III(B) of this NOFA. 
 
5. The CoC recommends the Applicant from the Service Area where the proposed 

Activity is located, as documented by the certification of approval from the CoC. 
Note: Single-county CoCs may recommend no more than two applications. Multi-
county CoCs may recommend no more than three applications.  

 
6. The application includes a funding request of at least $75,000, but not more than 

$200,000.  
 
7. Proposed Activities are eligible pursuant to Section III Subsection B of this NOFA.  
 
8. Pursuant to 25 CCR § 8401, Applicants must have adequate and documented site 

control for any application proposing an ES Activity. 
 
9. The application includes a certification of written standards for the proposed Activities 

adopted by the CoC, as described in Section VI of this NOFA. 
 
10. The application must include a completed Authorizing Resolution (AR) on the HCD 

template and approved by the Applicant’s governing board. The AR designates a 
person or persons responsible for, and authorized to execute, all documents related to 
the application of ESG funds, ESG award, and submittal of funds requests. Please see 
the instructions for completing the required HCD AR template on the ESG website. 
Failure to use the required AR template provided by HCD will result in automatic 
disqualification. If a governing body must prepare a separate resolution concurrently 
that conforms to its local standard, it may do so in addition to preparing the AR form 

https://portal.ecivis.com/#/login


 

 
  

       
 

     
      

  
 

 

 
    

    
 

       
     

     
       

   
       

   

     
    

 
      

       
      

    
        

      
       

    
 

       
       

  
 

   
 

 

     

   
     

    
 

     
     

  
      

  

 

provided by HCD. In the event the Applicant's AR is not submitted by the application 
due date, then the entire application will be deemed untimely and thus automatically 
rejected in its entirety. 

11. Pursuant to  24 CFR Part 576.202 ( a)(2)  for private non-profit  organizations  proposing  
ES Activities, the application must include a  Certification of  Local Approval  completed  
and  signed  by  the  city  or  county  where  the  Activity  is  located.   

12. For applications from private nonprofit-organizations, the application contains the 
organization’s current bylaws and articles of incorporation. 

13. All Applicants must demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Department that it is following the 
financial management requirements of 2 CFR Part 200. The Applicant must provide the 
Department with its most recent single audit (as submitted to the State Controller’s Office), if 
applicable, as well as the most recent year’s Form 990. If the Applicant has any open single 
audit findings and does not have a plan or an agreement to remediate those findings, the 
Applicant will be deemed ineligible for funding through the State ESG program until the 
findings are resolved or a remediation plan or agreement is established. 

14. Pursuant to 24 CFR Part 576.201, Applicants must have identified dollar-for-dollar 
match for the federal ESG funding with funds from other public or private sources. 

An application may be deemed ineligible if the application does not meet the threshold 
requirements, if the application is incomplete, or if HCD cannot determine compliance with 
the threshold requirements. HCD may request clarification of unclear or ambiguous 
statements made in the application and other supporting documents if this information 
will not affect the competitive scoring of the application. HCD may request documentation 
necessary for compliance with state or federal requirements and may request that an 
Applicant revise application documents, as necessary to establish compliance, if such 
revisions do not affect the competitive scoring of the application. 

G. Rating Criteria (25 CCR § 8407) 
All applications meeting the threshold requirements will be rated based on the following 
criteria: 

Factor Criteria Max 
Points 

Length of experience implementing the proposed eligible Activity 
or Activity like the proposed eligible Activity. 20 

Applicant
Experience  

For Applicants who have received ESG funding in at least one of 
the past three years (e.g., 2019, 2020, or 2021), a maximum of 
20 points will be deducted for the following: 

• HCD has terminated or disencumbered ESG grant funding; 
• The Applicant has unresolved monitoring findings in ESG that 

pose a substantial risk to HCD; or 
• The Applicant has not submitted annual reports in a timely 

manner for ESG grants. 

-20 

Department of Housing and Community Development 21 
2023 Emergency Solutions Grants Program NOFA Balance of State Allocation 

https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/2/part-200


 

 
Department of Housing and Community Development 22 
2023 Emergency Solutions Grants Program NOFA Balance of State Allocation  

 

Factor Criteria Max 
Points 

Program 
Design 

Quality of the proposed program in delivering eligible Activities to 
participants consistent with the CoC’s written standards and state 
ESG Regulation section 8409 Core Practices. The CoC 
representative must self-certify the Core Practice Table in the 
application is true and correct. 
 
In making determinations under this rating factor, HCD may 
examine such things as CoC written standards for the proposed 
Activity, Service Provider guidelines governing Activity 
operations, program rules for clients, the reasonableness of 
program staffing patterns, and the Activity budget relative to 
program design, target population, and local conditions. 

20 

Need for 
Funds 

Need for funds is based on whether the application Activity and 
subpopulation targeting, if any, meets a high need for the 
community as identified by the CoC in a manner that is 
consistent with the state’s Core Practices.  
 
Need is supported by data and analysis provided by the CoC, 
including, but not limited to, HMIS data and data from the most 
recent Point-in-Time Count of homeless persons published by 
HUD. 

10 

Impact and 
Effectiveness 
 

Scoring for the performance outcomes in the impact and 
effectiveness-rating factor will be evaluated using data from 
HMIS for the federal fiscal years October 1, 2020 – September 
30, 2021, and October 1, 2021 – September 30, 2022, or for 
those projects not in operation during this entire time, the most 
recent 12-month period. For data coming from victim Service 
Providers, data from a HUD-compliant comparable database 
may be used. 
 
Project-level performance data – up to 24 points 
The project level measures are as follows:  
 
1) Average length of project participation for individual leavers 

CoC Program HMIS Manual  
 
2) Leavers exiting to permanent housing. Scores assigned will be 

based on relative success rate. For project-level performance 
metrics, programs of the same Activity type (i.e., SO, ES, 
RRH) will only be compared against programs of that same 
Activity type.  

 
System-Level Performance Data – up to 6 points 
Reports submitted by the CoC must be consistent with HUD’s 
February 2019 System Performance Measures. Scoring will be 
based on the CoC Service Area ’s shown improvement in either 
of the following two measures over the federal fiscal years 
October 1, 2020 – September 30, 2021, and October 1, 2021 – 

30 

https://www.hudexchange.info/resource/4445/coc-program-hmis-manual/


 

 
Department of Housing and Community Development 23 
2023 Emergency Solutions Grants Program NOFA Balance of State Allocation  

 

Factor Criteria Max 
Points 

September 30, 2022: 1) The Change in Exits to Permanent 
Housing, (Measure 7b1, or as may be renumbered by HUD); or 
2) Increases in the number of Chronically Homeless served, as 
measured under Metric 3.917, or as may be renumbered by 
HUD. 

Cost 
Efficiency 

Using HMIS and expenditure data for federal fiscal year 
October 1, 2021 – September 30, 2022, or, for those programs 
not in operation during this entire time, Applications will be 
evaluated based on the average cost per exit to permanent 
housing based on the total program expenditures for the 
proposed Activity and the number of exits to permanent housing 
CoC Program HMIS Manual. 
 
For data coming from victim Service Providers, data from a HUD-
compliant comparable database may be used. 
 
HCD may require additional documentation to verify the accuracy 
of the information provided. If this occurs, the Applicant shall 
promptly provide such documentation. 

10 

TOTAL  90 
 
Application Selection 
 
Applications will be ranked based on their score as follows: 

 
1. Within each regional allocation, applications will be ranked in descending order and 

awarded the amount requested in the application, or a revised amount if necessary to 
conform to funding limits in the NOFA. In the event of a tie between Applicants within a 
regional allocation, funds will be awarded to the Applicant who scored the most points 
in the Impact and Effectiveness rating factor. 
 

2. When there are insufficient funds to fully fund the next highest ranked application, this 
application may be partially funded if the approved Activities can be adequately 
performed with the remaining ESG allocation (25 CCR § 8407 (b)(3)). 

 
Applicants are advised that, if funded, their application will be incorporated by reference 
into the Standard Agreement.  
 
HCD will carefully examine the Applicant’s records at the time of grant monitoring to 
determine the accuracy of statements made in their application. If it is determined that an 
Applicant falsified any certification or application information, HCD reserves the right to 
require reimbursement of the full amount of the ESG award and to prohibit further 
participation in the ESG program. HCD may also impose any other actions permitted 
under 24 CFR Part 576.501 (c). 
 
 

https://www.hudexchange.info/resource/4445/coc-program-hmis-manual/


 

 
Department of Housing and Community Development 24 
2023 Emergency Solutions Grants Program NOFA Balance of State Allocation  

 

Appeals 
 
Time is of the essence in awarding federal ESG funds. Any funding delays could result in 
the loss of all ESG funding received by HCD. Therefore, HCD’s funding decisions are final 
and are not subject to appeal. 
 

IV. Eligible Applicants  
 
To provide ESG-eligible Activities within a CoC Service Area as listed in Appendix A, 
Applicants must be either private non-profit organizations or units of general-purpose local 
governments. In addition, all Applicants must have a Dun and Bradstreet Universal 
Numbering System (DUNS) number. Applicants must list their DUNS number in the ESG 
application. Evidence of an active DUNS number with the correct Applicant address is 
required as part of the application and may be obtained by searching the System for Award 
Management (SAM). Applicants must include a copy of the search result in the application.  
 
HCD will not award any ESG funds to Applicants that are debarred, suspended, proposed for 
debarment, or declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation from federally 
assisted programs. 
 
Private non-profit organization, as defined in 24 CFR Part 576.2, is an organization that: 1) is 
a secular or religious organization described in Section 501(c) of the Internal Revenue Code 
of 1986 and is exempt from taxation under subtitle A of the Codes; 2) has an accounting 
system; 3) has a voluntary board; 4) practices nondiscrimination in the provision of assistance; 
and 5) does not include a governmental organization, such as a public housing agency or 
housing finance agency.  
  
Faith-based organizations receiving ESG funds, like all organizations receiving HUD funds, 
must serve all eligible program participants without regard to religion. 
 
Units of general-purpose local governments, as defined in 24 CFR Part 576.2, are any city, 
county, town, township, parish, village, or other general-purpose political subdivision of a 
state.  
 
Units of general-purpose local governments applying for ESG funding for ES and/or SO 
Activities must not replace funds the local government provided for these Activities during the 
immediately preceding 12-month period, except in situations of severe financial deficit as 
determined by HUD. 
 

V. Eligible costs 
 
Contractors and their recommended Subcontractors must follow all the OMB Cost Principles 
and Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). The OMB requirements are listed in 2 
CFR Part 200.  
 
Shifting costs between awards to overcome funding deficiencies is not allowed. 
 
Costs charged to the ESG program must be allowable, allocable, and reasonable. 
 



 

 
Department of Housing and Community Development 25 
2023 Emergency Solutions Grants Program NOFA Balance of State Allocation  

 

• Allowable costs must conform to any limitations or exclusion set forth in the federal cost 
principles and the ESG NOFA. In addition, allowable costs must comply with the policies 
and procedures afforded all Activities within the Contractor or Subcontractor organization, 
and must be treated consistently, whether as an indirect or direct cost. Finally, allowable 
costs must comply with the GAAP and the costs must be adequately documented.  
 

• Allocable costs are those treated consistently with other costs incurred for the same 
purpose in-like circumstances, and these costs must meet the requirements listed in 
2 CFR Part 200.405. 
 

• Reasonable costs do not exceed, in nature or amount, costs that would be incurred by a 
prudent person under the same or similar circumstances prevailing at the time a decision 
was made to incur the cost. 
 

Eligible costs may be direct or indirect. They must be incurred for the same purpose in like 
circumstances and must be treated consistently as either direct or indirect costs. 
 
• Direct costs are those costs that can be identified specifically with a particular final cost 

objective (such as the ESG award) and can be directly assigned to an Activity relatively 
easily with a high degree of accuracy.  
 

• Indirect costs are those that have been incurred for common or joint objectives and cannot 
be readily identified with a particular final cost objective or Activity. 
 

HCD will reimburse Contractors for indirect costs at a “de minimus rate” based on the 
Modified Total Direct Cost (MTDC) unless the Contractor has a federally authorized indirect 
cost rate agreement. If the Contractor has a federally authorized indirect cost rate agreement, 
HCD will reimburse Contractors for indirect costs at the authorized rate. If an Applicant is 
requesting an indirect cost rate higher than 10 percent, based on a federally authorized 
indirect cost rate agreement, that agreement must be submitted with their application. 
Contractors that will seek reimbursement for any indirect costs must comply with all OMB 
requirements including 2 CFR Part 200.403 and 2 CFR Part 200 Appendix 4. Contractor 
records must include evidence of the MTDC calculations, indirect cost limits, and supporting 
documentation for actual direct cost billing.  
 
All eligible costs incurred after the date of the ESG award letter issued by HCD are 
reimbursable after full execution of the state Standard Agreement. Contractors shall not plan 
to expend any state ESG funds requiring reimbursement prior to the award letter. In addition, 
no funds shall be expended until any required environmental review process has been 
completed, if required under 24 CFR Part 50. 
 

VI. Implementation requirements  
 

A. Core Practices  
Use of Coordinated Entry: Unless exempted by federal rules, all ESG-funded Activities 
shall utilize a Coordinated Entry System (CES) established by the CoC in a manner that 
promotes the following:  
 



 

 
Department of Housing and Community Development 26 
2023 Emergency Solutions Grants Program NOFA Balance of State Allocation  

 

1. Comprehensive and coordinated access to assistance regardless of where an 
individual or family is in the CoC Service Area. Local systems should be easy to 
navigate and have protocols in place to ensure immediate access to assistance for 
people who are experiencing homelessness or are most at-risk. 
 

2. Prioritized access to assistance for people with the most urgent and severe needs, 
including, but not limited to, survivors of domestic violence. ESG-funded Activities shall 
seek to prioritize people who: 
• Are unsheltered and living in places not designed for human habitation; 
• Have experienced the longest amount of time homeless; 
• Have multiple and severe services needs that inhibit their ability to quickly identify 

and secure housing on their own; and  
• For HP Activities, are at greatest risk of becoming Literally Homeless9 without an 

intervention and are at greatest risk of experiencing a longer time in ES or on the 
street should they become homeless. 
 

Housing First practices: All ESG-assisted projects shall operate in a manner consistent 
with Housing First practices as reflected in the state’s Core Practices10 and the CoC 
written standards and progressive engagement and assistance practices, including the 
following: 
 
1. Ensuring low-barrier, easily accessible assistance to all people, including, but not 

limited to, people with no income or income history, and people with active substance 
abuse or mental health issues; 
 

2. Helping participants quickly identify and resolve barriers to obtaining and maintaining 
housing; 

 
3. Quickly resolving a participant’s housing crisis before focusing on other non-housing 

related services;  
 

4. Allowing participants to choose the services and housing that meets their needs, within 
practical and funding limitations; and  

 
5. Connecting participants to appropriate support services available in the community that 

foster long-term housing stability. 
 
Progressive engagement: Offering financial assistance and supportive services in a 
manner that offers a minimum amount of assistance initially, adding more assistance 
over time, if needed, to quickly resolve the participant’s housing crisis by either ending 
homelessness, avoiding an immediate return to becoming literally homeless, or 
avoiding the imminent risk of becoming homeless. The type, duration, and amount of 
assistance offered shall be based on an individual assessment of the household and 
the availability of other resources or support systems to resolve their housing crisis and 
stabilize them in housing. 

 
 

9 The Homeless Definition and Eligibility for SHP, SPC, and ESG, “Homeless Definition” 
10 25 CCR § 8409 



 

 
Department of Housing and Community Development 27 
2023 Emergency Solutions Grants Program NOFA Balance of State Allocation  

 

 
RRH and HP terms of assistance: RRH Activities funded within the same CoC Service 
Area shall follow the same program requirements for type, duration, and amount of 
assistance provided, unless the CoC provides sufficient written justification for any 
differences, and these are approved in writing by HCD. HP Activities funded within the 
same CoC Service Area shall follow the same program requirements for type, duration, 
and amount of assistance provided, unless sufficient written justification for any 
differences is provided by the CoC and HCD approves such justification in writing.  

 
B. Written Standards  

Funded Activities must operate consistently with the written standards currently 
adopted by the CoC and applicable to all similar Activities. In general, written standards 
address such things as policies and procedures for evaluating eligibility, targeting, and 
prioritizing of services, length and terms of assistance, coordination among services, 
and participation in HMIS. Applicants should consult the federal regulations for what 
should be addressed in written standards for each Activity. 
 
In addition, state regulations require that written standards reflect the state’s Core 
Practices11, including: 

 
1. Protocols for use of coordinated entry to promote comprehensive and coordinated 

access to assistance and prioritized while prioritizing access to assistance for people 
with the most urgent and severe need; 
 

2. Use Housing First and progressive engagement practices; and 
 

3. Consistent program requirements governing decisions around type, duration, and 
amount of assistance provided if multiple RRH or HP programs are operated within the 
same Service Area. 

 
C. Match  

Contractors must make matching contributions in an amount that equals the amount of 
federal ESG funds awarded. HCD may request documentation as part of program 
monitoring to determine the sources and amounts used to meet the federal ESG matching 
requirement.  
 
Matching contributions may be obtained from any source, including any federal source 
other than the ESG program, as well as state, local, and private sources. However, the 
following requirements apply to matching contributions from a federal source of funds:  

 
1. Laws governing any funds to be used as matching contributions do not prohibit those 

funds from being used to match ESG funds. 
 

 
 
11 25 CCR § 8409 



 

 
Department of Housing and Community Development 28 
2023 Emergency Solutions Grants Program NOFA Balance of State Allocation  

 

2. Per 24 CFR Part 576.201, if ESG funds are used to satisfy the matching requirements 
of another federal program, then funding from that program may not be used to satisfy 
the matching requirements.  

 
VII. Contract expenditure and obligation requirements 

 
All the Contractor’s ESG funds must be expended for eligible Activity costs within 24 months 
after the date HUD signs the grant agreement with HCD. 

 
After the Standard Agreement with HCD is fully executed, Contractors may request an 
advance of 30 days working capital or $5,000, whichever is greater. Otherwise, all funding 
requests are on a reimbursement-only basis.  

  
All eligible costs incurred after the date of the award letter issued to the Contractor by HCD 
are reimbursable. Contractors shall not expend any funds requiring reimbursement prior to 
the date of the award letter. However, no funds shall be expended until any required 
environmental review process has been completed, if required under 24 CFR Part 50.  
 
Requests for disbursement must be made at least quarterly. HCD may establish minimum 
reimbursement amounts, or other related procedures necessary for the efficient 
administration of the ESG program.  
 

VIII. State Overlays  
 
 It is the duty and responsibility of each Applicant to review the provisions, requirements, and 

limitations of all funding sources applied for and obtained for a particular project, program, or 
activity to ensure that each requirement of those funding sources is compatible with all HCD 
program requirements and restrictions. Incompatibility of funding sources will result in the 
denial or cancellation of an award or may result in the placement of conditions or limitations 
on an award, all as determined by HCD in its sole and absolute discretion. 

 
IX. Additional Federal Requirements  

  
A. General  

The requirements in 24 CFR Part 5, subpart A are applicable, including the 
nondiscrimination and equal opportunity requirements found at 24 CFR Part 5.105(a). 
Section 3 of the HUD Act of 1968 and implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 75 
apply, except that homeless individuals have priority over other Section 3 residents in 
accordance with 24 CFR Part 576.405(c). 
 

B. Program Requirements: 24 CFR Part 576 
§ 576.400 Area-wide systems coordination requirements. 
§ 576.401 Evaluation of program participant eligibility and needs. 
§ 576.402 Terminating assistance. 
§ 576.403 Shelter and housing standards. 
§ 576.404 Conflicts of interest. 
§ 576.405 Homeless participation. 
§ 576.406 Equal participation of faith-based organizations. 

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-24/part-5/subpart-A
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-24/part-75
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-24/section-576.400
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-24/subtitle-B/chapter-V/subchapter-C/part-576#576.401
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-24/subtitle-B/chapter-V/subchapter-C/part-576/subpart-E/section-576.402
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-24/subtitle-B/chapter-V/subchapter-C/part-576/subpart-E/section-576.403
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-24/subtitle-B/chapter-V/subchapter-C/part-576/subpart-E/section-576.404
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-24/subtitle-B/chapter-V/subchapter-C/part-576/subpart-E/section-576.405
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-24/subtitle-B/chapter-V/subchapter-C/part-576/subpart-E/section-576.406
24 CFR Part 5.105(a)
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-24/subtitle-B/chapter-V/subchapter-C/part-576/subpart-E/section-576.405


 

 
Department of Housing and Community Development 29 
2023 Emergency Solutions Grants Program NOFA Balance of State Allocation  

 

§ 576.407 Other Federal requirements. 
§ 576.408 Displacement, relocation, and acquisition. 
§ 576.409 Protection for victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual 

assault, or stalking 
 

  
§576.500 Recordkeeping and reporting requirements. 
§576.501 Enforcement. 
 

 
C. Other Federal Requirements 

Contractors must be able to meet all federal requirements relative to the ESG program, 
specifically those concerning equal opportunity and fair housing, affirmative marketing, 
environmental review, displacement, relocation, acquisition, labor, lead-based paint, 
asbestos, conflict of interest, debarment, and suspension. Pertinent federal requirements 
are noted in federal ESG regulations and ESG Standard Agreements. All Applicants 
should be aware that, if funded, these requirements would apply. 
 

X. False, Fictitious or Fraudulent Claims   
 

Warning: Any person who knowingly makes a false claim or statement to HUD or the 
Department may be subject to civil or criminal penalties under 18 U.S.C. Sections: 287 and 
1001 as well as 31 U.S.C. § 3729.  
 
A. Detecting, Preventing, and Reporting FRAUD 
 
Fraud is a white-collar crime that has a devastating effect on the ESG program because the 
ESG program beneficiaries are victims of this crime when the ESG program is abused. 
 
HCD wants to stop any criminal assault on the ESG program it administers, and in doing so 
all ESG funds go to people it was designed to help and improve their living conditions.  
 
Combatting Fraud 
 
The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Office of Inspector General 
(OIG) is committed to protecting HUD’s programs, operations, and beneficiaries from 
dishonest individuals and organizations.  
 
HUD cannot combat fraud alone.  
 
HUD relies on HCD and ESG NOFA Applicants to combat ESG program fraud. HUD also 
relies on Applicants for, and people receiving, HUD benefits, such as tenants receiving rental 
assistance, borrowers with HUD insured loans, or citizens having their communities restored 
using HUD grants. 
 
The HUD OIG Hotline number is 1-800-347-3735. This is the primary means to submit 
allegations of fraud, waste, abuse, mismanagement, or whistleblower related matters for the 
ESG program to the Office of Inspector General.  
 

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-24/subtitle-B/chapter-V/subchapter-C/part-576/subpart-E/section-576.407
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-24/subtitle-B/chapter-V/subchapter-C/part-576/subpart-E/section-576.408
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-24/subtitle-B/chapter-V/subchapter-C/part-576/subpart-E/section-576.409
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-24/part-576/subpart-F
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-24/subtitle-B/chapter-V/subchapter-C/part-576/subpart-F/section-576.501


 

 
Department of Housing and Community Development 30 
2023 Emergency Solutions Grants Program NOFA Balance of State Allocation  

 

HUD OIG accepts reports of fraud, waste, abuse, or mismanagement in the ESG program 
from HUD employees, anyone administering the ESG program, anyone working in the ESG 
program, Contractors, and the public. 
 
You can report mismanagement or violations of law, rules, or regulations by HUD employees 
or program participants. 
 
Fraud, waste and abuse in the ESG program and its operation may be reported in one of the 
following four (4) ways: 
 
Email to: hotline@hudoig.gov  
By Phone: Call toll free: 1-800-347-3735 
By Fax: 202-708-4829  
 
By Mail: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development. 
 

 HUD OIG, Office of Investigation, Room 1200 
Field Office   

           One Sansome Street 
San Francisco, CA 94104 

  (213) 534-2518 
  

HUD OIG, Office of Investigation 
Suite 4070 
Regional Office 

  
  

300 North Los Angeles Street 
Los Angeles, CA 90012 
(213) 534-2518 

 
XI. Application Submittal Requirements 

 
The online 2023 ESG application link is available on the ESG webpage at 
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/emergency-solutions-grants. 
2023 ESG Applications must be accessed through the eCivis portal - Programs Available for 
Solicitation page. Paper binder applications will no longer be required or accepted.  
 
Applications and required documentation must be received by HCD no later than Monday, 
October 16, 2023, 3:00 p.m. Pacific Daylight Time. Any applications received after this time 
will not be accepted.  
 
Submit applications and all required documentation through the eCivis Grants Management 
System portal. Applications that do not meet the filing deadline will not be eligible for funding.  
 
Applicants are encouraged to set up their profiles in the eCivis Grants Management System 
portal located at https://portal.ecivis.com/#/login as early as possible. Profile set-up 
instructions can be found in the eCivis Grants Management System, External User Manual 
on the ESG webpage at https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-
active/emergency-solutions-grants.  
 

mailto:hotline@hudoig.gov
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/emergency-solutions-grants
https://gn.ecivis.com/GO/gn_redir/T/vyjsqf2kekyx
https://gn.ecivis.com/GO/gn_redir/T/vyjsqf2kekyx
https://portal.ecivis.com/#/login
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/active-funding/esg/docs/ecivis_grants_network_hcd_external_user_manual_12182019.pdf
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/emergency-solutions-grants
https://portal.ecivis.com/#/login
https://portal.ecivis.com/#/login
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/emergency-solutions-grants


 

 
Department of Housing and Community Development 31 
2023 Emergency Solutions Grants Program NOFA Balance of State Allocation  

 

If you have trouble logging into the portal or have questions on how to complete the online 
application, please contact HCD at ESGNOFA@hcd.ca.gov.  
 
Questions regarding the ESG NOFA and application process can be directed to 
ESGNOFA@hcd.ca.gov. 

 
  

mailto:ESGNOFA@hcd.ca.gov
mailto:ESGNOFA@hcd.ca.gov


  
      

      
 

  

   
 
  

 
  

 
 

                                                   
                                                   
                                         

 
 

                                      
                                    

 

   
                                      

                                                    
                                        

    
                                                  

   
                                      

                                           

                                      

    
                                      

                                                  
                             

 

  
 

  
                                                  

   
                                      

   
                                         

                                        
                                           
                                           

  

  
  

 
                                      

                                        

   
                                      

                            

                           
 

 

Appendix A: 2023 Estimated BoS Formula Allocation 

2023 Estimated BoS Allocation 

Region CoC# CoC Name 
Formula 

Allocation 40% for RRH 

Regional 
Competition 

after 40% 50% for RR 

Regional 
Competition 

after 50% 

Ba
y 

Ar
ea

 507 Marin County CoC $ 154,030 $ 61,612 $ 92,418 $ 77,015 $ 77,015 
517 Napa City & County CoC $ 123,143 $ 49,257 $ 73,886 $ 61,572 $ 61,572 
518 Vallejo/Solano County CoC $ 213,595 $ 85,438 $  128,157 $ 106,798 $ 106,798 

508 
Watsonville/Santa Cruz 
City & County CoC $ 290,001 $ 116,000 $  174,001 $ 145,001 $ 145,001 

Bay Area Totals $ 780,769 $ 312,308 $  468,461 $ 390,385 $ 390,385 

Ce
nt

ra
l a

nd
 Im

pe
ria

l 

521 Davis/Woodland/Yolo 
County CoC $ 317,123 $ 126,849 $  190,274 $ 158,562 $ 158,562 

525 El Dorado County CoC $ 125,746 $ 50,298 $ 75,448 $ 62,873 $ 62,873 
613 Imperial County CoC $ 290,963 $ 116,385 $  174,578 $ 145,482 $ 145,482 

530 Inyo, Mono, Alpine 
Counties CoC $ 133,353 $ 53,341 $ 80,012 $ 66,677 $ 66,677 

520 Merced City & County 
CoC $ 357,649 $ 143,060 $  214,589 $ 178,825 $ 178,825 

515 Roseville/Rocklin/Placer 
County CoC $ 210,849 $ 84,340 $  126,509 $ 105,425 $ 105,425 

603 Santa Maria/Santa 
Barbara County CoC $ 284,077 $ 113,631 $  170,446 $ 142,039 $ 142,039 

513 Visalia, Kings, Tulare 
Counties CoC $ 389,705 $ 155,882 $  233,823 $ 194,853 $ 194,853 

531 Nevada County CoC $ 168,582 $ 67,433 $  101,149 $ 84,291 $ 84,291 
Central and Imperial Totals $ 2,278,047 $ 911,219 $  1,366,828 $  1,139,024 $  1,139,024 

N
or

th
er

n 

526 
Amador, Calaveras, 
Tuolumne, and Mariposa 
Counties CoC $ 156,779 $ 62,712 $ 94,067 $ 78,390 $ 78,390 

519 Chico/Paradise/Butte 
County CoC $ 315,761 $ 126,304 $  189,457 $ 157,881 $ 157,881 

523 Colusa, Glenn, Trinity 
Counties CoC $ 206,189 $ 82,476 $  123,713 $ 103,095 $ 103,095 

522 Humboldt County CoC $ 286,269 $ 114,508 $  171,761 $ 143,135 $ 143,135 
529 Lake County CoC $ 246,245 $ 98,498 $  147,747 $ 123,123 $ 123,123 
509 Mendocino County CoC $ 237,825 $ 95,130 $  142,695 $ 118,913 $ 118,913 

516 

Redding/Shasta, Siskiyou, 
Lassen, Plumas, Del Norte, 
Modoc, Sierra Counties 
CoC $ 314,301 $ 125,720 $  188,581 $ 157,151 $ 157,151 

527 Tehama County CoC $ 256,366 $ 102,546 $  153,820 $ 128,183 $ 128,183 

524 Yuba City & County/Sutter 
County CoC $ 312,334 $ 124,934 $  187,400 $ 156,167 $ 156,167 

Northern Totals $ 2,332,069 $ 932,828 $  1,399,241 $  1,166,035 $  1,166,035 

BoS Totals $ 5,390,885 $  2,156,354 $  3,234,531 $  2,695,443 $  2,695,443 

Department of Housing and Community Development 32 
2023 Emergency Solutions Grants Program NOFA Balance of State Allocation 


	2023 ESG Balance of State NOFA.pdf
	Emergency Solutions Grants Program Balance of State Allocation 2023 Notice of Funding Availability
	Table of Contents
	I. Overview
	A. Notice of Funding Availability
	B. Tentative program timeline
	C. New Requirements & Additions in the 2023 NOFA
	1. Environmental Review
	2. Match Exemption Application (Up to a maximum $100,000 will be awarded)
	3. Street Outreach Requirements (SO)
	4. Emergency Shelter Requirements (ES)
	5. Rapid Re-Housing Requirements (RRH)
	6. Single Audit and Form 990 Required with Submission of Applications
	7. Homelessness Prevention Requirements (HP) (Reminder)
	8. Expenditure Milestones (Reminder)
	9. Grants Management System (GMS) (Reminder)
	10. Advancing Racial Equity (Reminder)

	D. Authorizing Legislation
	E. Role of Continuum of Care in the BoS Allocation

	II. BoS Non-competitive Funding
	F. Overview
	G. Annual Action Plan requirements
	H. Amounts available for Administrative Activities
	I. Eligible Activities
	J. Terms of Assistance

	III. BoS Regional Competitive Requirements
	A. Amounts available for Administrative Activities:
	B. Eligible Activities:
	C. Terms of Assistance
	D. The following table summarizes the eligible ESG Activities under the regional competition.
	E. Regional Competition Application Requirements:
	F. Application Threshold Requirements
	G. Rating Criteria (25 CCR § 8407)

	IV. Eligible Applicants
	V. Eligible costs
	VI. Implementation requirements
	A. Core Practices
	B. Written Standards
	C. Match

	VII. Contract expenditure and obligation requirements
	VIII. State Overlays
	IX. Additional Federal Requirements
	A. General
	B. Program Requirements: 24 CFR Part 576
	C. Other Federal Requirements

	X. False, Fictitious or Fraudulent Claims
	XI. Application Submittal Requirements
	Appendix A: 2023 Estimated BoS Formula Allocation
	2023 Estimated BoS Allocation






